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MESSAGE FROM THE PRESIDENT

2019 will be remembered in KMBA history as the year
we opened our Members’ Center in Quezon City.

In May 2019, we welcomed for the first time our
KASAGANA-KA sister organizations, partners, and
distinguished guests into our home. As envisioned, the
Members’ Center now stands as a concrete
testament to years of toil and rich culture of mutual
assistance that define the Association.

While we have a new place of work, we have always
maintained the same discipline and prudence in
conducting our business. As such, we have, once
again, been recognized 11t place among the top
performing insurance companies and mutual benefit
associations in the country by the Insurance
Commission, based on the 2019 ASEAN Corporate
Governance Scorecard.

As in previous years, we have fulfilled our commitment to the 24-hour claims settlement
policy every single time. This, notwithstanding, we will push for more efficient service
for our members by aiming for an eight-hour claims settflement policy, upon complete
submission of all requirements.

Last year, we saw the full implementation of the Hospitalization Income Insurance Plan
(HIIP), the intfroduction of enhanced benefits under the K-Bente, and the encouraging
increase in members availing of K-Kalinga. The development of new life insurance
products, the improvement of benefits, and the negotiation for better terms for the
non-life insurance products offered by our partners, are staples in the annual plans of
the Association.

| invite every member to read through this 2019 Annual Report and take pride in our
collective success. | look forward to meeting you when you visit our Members' Center
in Quezon City, which, | fervently hope, will only be the first of several centers to cater
to our members' concerns.

Mabuhay ang KMBA!

Enriqueta V. Navarro
President, Board of Trustees
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MESSAGE FROM THE GENERAL MANAGER

As | write this message for the 2019 Annual Report, |
am proud that | do so within the premises of the
KMBA Members' Center, which initially opened its
doors to members in May 2019 for our 13t Annual
General Meeting.

| am equally pleased to report to the KMBA
membership that last year, we assisted 555
beneficiaries, who received a combined
Php10.408Million in insurance benefits under the
Basic Life Insurance Plan. Every beneficiary was
able to collect his/her benefits within 24 hours from
submission of complete documents. Moreover, our
unified efforts have pushed our assets up by 6%, to
Php222Million, and resulted in 3.32% rise in our net
income, to reach Php7.5Million last year.

These we have achieved on the back of our sound corporate governance practices,
as affirmed by our solid performance rating in the ASEAN Corporate Governance
Scorecard assessment by the Institute of Corporate Directors. We cannot also discount
the invaluable support we consistently receive from our partner organizations and
industry allies, both locally and internationally. In turn, we have maintained our
enduring partnerships and actively work with them in aspects such as public
information campaign, congressional lobby, and exchange of industry best practices.

In 2019, we also formally welcomed the new nanay-leaders who will steer KMBA's
policy-making in the Board of Trustees. Management stands ready to carry out the
policies and plans of the Board for the general membership.

We are excited to work for bigger milestones in the years to come.

Silvida Reyes-Antiquera
General Manager
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PART ONE I Financial and Non-Financial Performance

OUR ASSOCIATION

Organized in May 2006, KMBA is a non-stock, not-for-profit mutual aid organization
owned and managed by its members. It provides affordable insurance products and
services to poor women and their families. It was registered with the Securities and
Exchange Commission in June 2006, and was given a license to operate as a mutual
benefit association by the Insurance Commission in April 2007. Members of the
KASAGANA-KA Credit and Savings Cooperative (K-COOP) constitute KMBA's core
members. KMBA also offers associate membership to client-beneficiaries of its partner
microfinance organizations and other organized sectors. KMBA's members and clients
are from the urban poor sector, majority of which are women. To confirm, with formality,
the following Mission, Vision and Goals of the association was presented to the Board
of Trustees during its first regular meeting for its perusal. Thereafter, the Board
unanimously approved and affirm its adoption as the association’s Mission, Vision and
Goals.
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MISSION AND VISION

During the annual review by the KMBA Board of Trustees (BoT), the following
statements continue to be reflective of the Association's mission and vision and were
thus re-adopted by the Association's Board:

KMBA envisions a self-reliant and self-sustaining mutual benefit association that actively
and appropriately responds to financial risk management needs of poor Filipino
families. Its mission is to provide microinsurance products and services for the poorest
Filipino families.

In line with such vision and mission, KMBA further commits itself to:
a. Promote basic life insurance that broadens the poor's safety nef;
b. Engage in various socially-oriented activities that render some assistance to
members in terms of their security needs;
c. Develop cost-effective mechanisms for the delivery of microinsurance products
to the association's targeted beneficiaries

ASSOCIATION'’S OBJECTIVES

The Association aimed to achieve the following in 2019:

a. Completion of the construction of a five-storey P a
mixed use building

b. BIR Application for Authority to Use computerized
accounting system (KMBA KOINS)

c. Implementation of the Enhanced Basic Life
Insurance Plan (BLIP)

d. Implementation of the newly-approved product -
Hospital Income Insurance Plan (HIIP)

e. Increase in membership to 60,000 members
f. Increase in total assets

g. Conduct of the 13th Annual General Meeting and
Election of new set of Trustees

h. Finalization of manuals for Board approval
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OUR PRODUCTS
Basic Life Insurance Plan (BLIP)

This is provided to all client-beneficiaries and staff members of KDCI, as well as to client-
beneficiaries of KMBA's partner microfinance institutions and community or basic
sector groups. Members contfribute Php 20 per week (Php 15 for the insurance
premium, and Php 5 for the retirement savings fund). KMBA strictly complies with its 24-
hour claims settlement policy.

Credit Life Insurance Plan (CLIP)

This insurance coverage is offered to KMBA's partner organizations, and allows the
latter to insure its own individual borrowers or debtors for an amount equal to the loan
granted (up to a maximum of Php 200,000).

Hospital Income Insurance Plan (HIIP)

This insurance plan is a hospital confinement benefit of a daily cash allowance paid for
the number of days the member is unable to work due to bodily injury or sickness which
requires hospital confinement.

OUR SERVICES
K-Kalinga

This is a personal accident insurance with fire assistance designed specifically for non-
KMBA members, made available to KMBA's associate members and to their relatives
and fellow community members who are in need of such insurance coverage. This
KMBA product is being provided in partnership with the Bankers Assurance Corporation
(BAC).

Calamity Assistance

This is a post-emergency housing assistance adopted by KMBA for all insured members.
A maximum amount of Php 3,000 may be given to covered member with totally
damaged house following a natural or man-made disaster (e.g., typhoon, flooding,
earthquake, fire, tsunami, volcanic eruption, tsunami, lightning strikes, and terrorism).
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K-Bente

This service, in partnership with an insurance
provider, is a Php20-a-year policy, which
provides cash benefits for natural or
accidental death.

Kuya Jun Scholarship Program

This scholarship program for children of KMBA
members began soon after KMBA's
establishment. The program’s name comes
from the first executive director of KDCI,
Severiano C. Marcelo Jr., who passed away in
2008. The program is open to high school and
college students. All applicants have to pass a
qualifying exam, and a background check. To
keep their scholarships, high  school
beneficiaries should get a grade average of
82%., while college students should obtain 2.5
or its equivalent (with no failing marks and two
grades of incomplete in their enrolled
subjects).

ACCOMPLISHMENTS FOR 2019

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Assets grew by a modest 6%, expanding to about P222 million by end of 2019. Liabilities,
on the other hand, increased by 8.5%. KMBA managed a 1.39% rise in fund balance

and a 3.32% higher net income, compared to 2018 figures.

Table No. 1 Financial Highlights (2018-2019)

Particular 2019 2018 % Variance
Assets P 223.582.228.00 P 209,248,508.00 6.85%
Liabilities P 148,619,604.00 P 135,155,314.00 9.96%

(50% Reserves & RF)
Fund Balance

(Guaranty Fund + Unassigned P 74,962,624.00 P 74,093,194.00 1.17%
Surplus + Net Surplus)
Net Income P 6,655,965.00 P 7,257,405.00 -8.29%
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Particular 2019 2018 %Variance
Operating Expense 11,331,710.00 |9,392,408.00 20.6%
Liquidity Ratio 123.98% 348.63% -64.43%
Margin of insolvency 135% 135% -
MEMBERSHIP

By end of 2019, members whose policies remain in-force total 46,846. Assuming that
every member belongs to a family of four, KMBA estimates a total of 187,384 individual
lives covered by its life insurance products.

Close to three quarters, or 73.94%, of KMBA membership are members of its sister
organization KASAGANA-KA Cooperative (K-Coop). This is slightly higher than K-Coop's
73.16% share in total KMBA membership. On the other hand, associate members from
JVOFI and other groups make up only 1.52% of total KMBA members, lower than its
2.62% share the previous year.

Table No. 2 KMBA Members

Group Number of policies in force %
K-Coop 34,635 73.94%
CAPS-R, Inc. 11,498 24.54%
JVOFI and other groups 713 1.52%
TOTAL 46,846 100.00%

In terms of members’ age, those in the 40-49 years old bracket comprise the biggest
group, making up 32.91% of all members. The 18-29 years old group accounts for
10.63%, while those 60 years and beyond compose the smallest group, at 5.47% of total

members.
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KMBA is committed to increasing its membership outreach by 15% in 2020, which should
include associate members from at least one new consortium partner.

Already, KMBA has laid the groundwork to make this objective possible. Last year,
KMBA took part in the micro-insurance awareness campaign initiated by the Insurance
Commission in areas where KMBA is present. The Association was looking at a potential
new market when it conducted a product orientation seminar for beneficiaries of
Quezon City vertfical housing projects. KMBA has been negotiating a possible
partnership with Save the Children in Cebu, to provide insurance coverage for the
parents of the organization’s scholars.

CLAIMS

A total of 555 beneficiaries filed claims under the BLIP. Half of them are the legal
dependent-spouses of the members. This translated to Php 10.408Million claims
disbursements. That amount comprises 28.17% of the Php 36.200Million BLIP premium
collections for the year.

KMBA has maintained 100% performance in its 24-hour claims settlement policy.
Nevertheless, to better serve its members and their beneficiaries, KMBA aims to
enforce an eight-hour claims settlement policy upon notification.

Table No. 3 Total Claims for the Year 2019

Period Numlber Amount of Claims
of Claims Disbursement

2006-2019 3,800 Php56.021M | w -
LR %) % _
2019 555 Php10.408M k x

PRODUCTS AND SERVICES
Basic Life Insurance Plan (BLIP)

Following the implementation of the enhanced BLIP in mid-2018 and the full
implementation of the Hospital Income Insurance Plan (HIIP) in 2019, KMBA looks to
expand the reach of BLIP in order to cover more individuals. Along with this, the
Association has began undertaking reviews on why some members terminate their
policies early while many continue to patronize KMBA products.
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Credit Life Insurance Plan (CLIP)

With K-Coop placing all loan products, save K-Kalusugan and K-Benepisyo, under CLIP,
and CAPS-R adopting a 100% coverage for all its loan products, KMBA's CLIP extended
insurance cover for 140,082 loans. This is 7.5% more than the number of loans covered
in 2018.

Through CLIP, KMBA raked in Phpl10,814,713.54 in premium collections. Of this,
Php3,155,000 or 29%, was disbursed to answer 266 claims for the entire year.

Table No. 4 CLIP Status

Particular 2019 2018
Number of loans covered by CLIP 140,082 130,273
Premium collected Php10,814,713 Php9,493,697
Number of claims 266 182
Amount of claims Php3,155,000 Php 1,844,000
Claims ratio 29% 19.42%

The number of CLIP claims has been increasing each year. There were only 124 claims
in 2016. Last year, there were 182. It jumped by 46.15% in 2019, to reach 266 CLIP
claims.

Hospital Income Insurance Plan

Following its pilot implementation in November 2018, the Hospital Income
Insurance Plan (HIIP) was rolled out in all branches in January 2019. By year-end,
members who enrolled under HIIP totaled 14,782, resulting in Php3,695,601
premium collections.

Only 31 covered members submitted claims, which required KMBA to distribute
Php49,600 in insurance benefits.

Moving forward, the Association will implement the mandatory HIIP enrolment of
allmembers with in-force policy. For its part, KMBA will make sure that claims are
settled under the eight-hour claims settlement policy, reckoned from submission
of all documents.

K-Kalinga
More members took interest in K-Kalinga after the amount of fire assistance doubled

from Php5,000 to Php10,000, with the same PhpS50/unit annual premium. Last year,
24,003 policies were sold to members and their relatives. This is a 60% leap from the
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yearly target and 41% greater than the 2018 figure.

Accidental death benefits and fire assistance were claimed by 85 policy-holders.
Disbursements amounted to Php795,000.

K-Bente

The Association continued to extend free life insurance coverage for each member
and one dependent in case of natural or accidental death. This was made possible
under its members’ benefit program.

Through K-Bente, Sunlife Grepa Financial, Inc. provided insurance coverage to 72,341
enrolled members and their dependents unfil June 9, 2019. Qualified members stood
to receive Php5,000 in death benefits, which they may claim within the 10-day claims
period.

In its desire to enhance the benefits under K-Bente and improve the processing of
claims settlement, the Board approved the one-year contract with First Life Financial
Co., from June 10, 2019 to June 9, 2020. A total of 73,388 members and dependents
are K-Bente policyholders. Under the new policy, Phpé,000 will be awarded to the
beneficiary, regardless of the cause of death of the insured. First Life adheres to
the 5-7 days claims settlement policy.

For the whole 2019, Sunlife and First Life processed a combined total of 212 claims
and distributed Php1.3Million in death benefits.
Calamity Assistance

The Association utilized Php225,000 of its PhpO.5Million allocation for calamity
assistance to give aid to 75 members affected by fire or typhoon in 2019.
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Kuya Jun Scholarship Program

True to its aim, KMBA expanded the Program’s reach by about 30%. In 2019, 41 college
and 90 high school scholars received assistance to finance their schooling. Each
college student beneficiary was granted a Php5,000 stipend per semester, while every
high school student got Php3,000 for the year. That is equivalent to Phpé80,000 in
educational assistance for qualified children of members.

NETWORKS

KMBA's key role in promoting microinsurance to the general public and in advancing
the interests of MBAs in dialogues with government agencies as well as international
networks, has not gone unnoticed. In March 2019, General Manager (GM) Silvida R.
Antfiquera was elected President of the Microinsurance MBA Association of the
Philippines (MIMAP), Inc. Board of Trustees.

As MIMAP member, KMBA gave solid support to the following network activities:
= MIMAP Pooled investment managed by BPI Bayanihan Balanced Fund
(UITF)
» Mutual Guarantee Fund managed by Union Bank
» Reinsurance for Life and Credit Life through NATRE
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KMBA actively works with the sector to clarify taxation policies applicable to
mutual benefit associations. In October, this was among the issues tackled
during the policy dialogue with Insurance Commission head Dennis Funa. Also
discussed were the International Financial Reporting Standards 17 and the
pertinent rules for self-regulation organizations.

In a beneficial exchange of industry best practices, KMBA welcomed
representatives from the Japan-based National Federation of Workers and
Consumers Insurance Cooperative (ZENROSAI) and the National Mutual
Federation of Agricultural Cooperatives (ZENKYOREN) in April.

Its active involvement in the International Cooperative and Mutual Insurance
Federation (ICMIF) has led GM Antiquera to once again participate in ICMIF’s
Biennial Conference in Auckland in November. GM Antiquera took part in the
Conference along side K-Coop Operations Manager Dexter Flores.

Prior to the Conference, three representatives of KMBA and two from K-Coop
joined a two-day study tour organized by the Asia and Oceania Association
(AOA)-ICMIF, held at the NTUC Income Singapore in July.
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OTHER ACCOMPLISHMENTS

KMBA placed eleventh (11th) among insurance companies and mutual benefit
associations in the Insurance Industry ASEAN Corporate Governance Scorecard
(ACGS) Assessment conducted by the Institute of Corporate Directors. The Insurance
Commission once again recognized KMBA for this feat, which only speaks of KMBA's
sound corporate governance practices.

0,
: ; :
Republic of the Philippines
Department of Finance
INSURANCE COMMISSION
This
Plaque of ‘Recognition

: e

1s presented to

Kasagana-Ka Mutual
Benefit Association, Inc.

for placing Eleventh (11") among
INSURANCE COMPANIES
AND MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATIONS

In the 2019 Insurance Industry
ASEAN Corporate (ACGS)
By the Institute of Corporate Directors (ICD)

28 January 2020 /

/
ion Center (PICC) /

jonal C
Pasay City, Philippines.

Timely and full compliance with government regulatory requirements is being closely
monitored by the management of KMBA. Among these are the monthly submissions
to the Credit Information Corporation, the quarterly welbsite posting of material related
party transactions, and the periodic submissions to BIR, SEC, and DOLE.

To guide its business operations and governance practices, the final drafts of KMBA's
Accounting and Investment Manuals have been submitted to the Board of Trustees,
for its consideration. On the other hand, the Operations Manual was subjected to
review, for necessary updating. Also, KMBA has partficipated in the risk assessment
spearheaded by the KSO Risk Management Committee.

With these groundwork and its unwavering commitment, KMBA expects to
improve further its ACGS assessment rating in 2020.
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PART TWO | Corporate Governance and Management

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

The Corporation Code and KMBA's By-laws assign to its Board of Trustees (BoT) the
responsibility of governing, controlling, and managing the affairs, funds, and property
of the Association. Compliance with the principles of sound corporate governance
starts with the Board. The BoT exercises corporate powers and guides management of
KMBA's programs and services in accordance with such principles.

In accordance with the By-Laws, a new set of Trustees assumed office after the regular
elections held during the 13" Annual General Meeting of the Association.

CONTINUING EDUCATION AND LEADERSHIP DEVELOPMENT OF THE BOT
In line with the Association's commitment to equip its officer with the necessary

leadership and technical skills for the positions they hold, especially since most of the
Trustees are new in their posts, these are the trainings they each attended in 2019:
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Trustee Particular

Age: 62

Qualification: undergraduate of BS Civil Engineering
Term of Office: 3 years, 2019-2022

Other current corporate directorship: None

Training and Seminars Atftended:
e Governance and Anti-Money Laundering Act Workshop, June 2019
e Management Forum, July 2019
Enriqueta V. Navarro | ¢ Leadership Training, October 2019
President e Strategic Planning, November 22-23 2019

Age: 52

Qualification: High School Graduate

Term of Office: 3 years, 2019-2022

Other current corporate directorship: None

Training and Seminars Attended:
e Governance and Anti-Money Laundering Act Workshop, June 2019

e Management Forum, July 2019
e Leadership Training, October 2019
e Strategic Planning, November 22-23 2019

Alma D. Gilbaliga
Vice President

Age: 35

Qualification: Associate in Medical Secretariat

Term of Office: 3 years, 2018-2021

Other current corporate directorship: Kasagana-ka Employee-
Employer Provident Fund

Training and Seminars Attended:
¢ Annual Recollection and Team-building (KMBA), February 2019

e Management Forum, July 2019
e Strategic Planning, November 22-23 2019

Brenda F. Lumbao
Secretary

Age: 49

Qualification: High School Graduate
Term of Office: 3 years, 2019-2022
Other current corporate directorship:

Training and Seminars Attended:
e Governance and Anti-Money Laundering Act Workshop, June 2019

e Management Forum, July 2019
Ma. Lilibeth C. Molina | ® Leadership Training, October 2019
Treasurer e Strategic Planning, November 22-23 2019
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Age: 45

Qualification: Graduate of Vocational course
Term of Office: 2 years, 2019-2021

Other current corporate directorship: None

Training and Seminars Attended:
e Governance and Anfi-Money Laundering Act Workshop, June 2019

e Management Forum, July 2019
i e Leadership Training, October 2019
Jenifer L. Abao e Strategic Planning, November 22-23 2019

Age: 51

Qualification: Graduate of Vocational course
Term of Office: 2 years, 2019-2021

Other current corporate directorship: None

Training and Seminars Attended:

e Management Forum, July 2019

e Governance and Anti-Money Laundering Act Workshop,
October 2019

Rita T. Dela Cruz e Leadership Training, October 2019

e Strategic Planning, November 22-23 2019

Age: 43

Qualification: High School Graduate

Term of Office: 3 years, 2019-2022

Other current corporate directorship: None

Training and Seminars Attended:

e Management Forum, July 2019

e Governance and Antfi-Money Laundering Act Workshop,
October 2019

Teresita D. Padel e Leadership Training, October 2019

e Strategic Planning, November 22-23 2019

Age: 51

Qualification: Ph. D., Economics

Term of Office: 3 years, 2017-2022

Other current corporate directorship: None

Training and Seminars Attended:

¢ Annual Recollection and Teambuilding (KMBA), February 2019
Philip Arnold P. Tuafio | ® Management Forum, July 2019

Independent Board | ¢ Strategic Planning, November 22-23 2019
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Age: 51

Qualification: Ph. D., Economics

Term of Office: 3 years, 2018-2023

Other current corporate directorship: None

Training and Seminars Attended:

¢ Annual Recollection and Teambuilding (KMBA), February 2019
e Management Forum, July 2019

e Strategic Planning, November 22-23 2019

Atty. Ma. Cleofe
Gettie C. Sandoval
Independent Board

The Trustees whose term of office ended in May 2019 took part in the following seminars
and study-tour:

» National Microinsurance Forum (Insurance Commission), January 2019

» Annual Recollection and Teambuilding (KMBA), February 2019

= Lakbay-Aral in Dumaguete City, May 2019

BOARD MEETINGS

The KMBA Board of Trustees met in six (6) regular meetings and three (3) special
meetings for the entire 2019. The table below summarizes the attendance of Trustees
in Board meetings, as well as in the Association’s Annual General Meeting last 31 May
2019.

Table No. 5 Attendance: Board of Trustees

ANNUAL | REGULAR | SPECIAL
TRUSTEE DESIGNATION MTG MTG MTG %
Old set of Trustees (January 1 to May 31, 2019)
Isabel M. lliw-iliw President v 3 2 100
Marissa A. Loyola Treasurer v 3 ] 80
Ma. Teresa G. Bucad Member v 3 ] 80
Anita L. Manundo Member v 2 2 80
Marilyn C. Aldave Member v 3 1 80
Elizabeth G. Fuentes Member v 3 2 100
New set of Trustees (June 1 to December 31, 2019)
Enrigueta V. Navarro President v 3 1 100
Alma D. Gilbaliga Vice-President v 3 1 100
Ma. Lilibeth C. Molina Treasurer v 3 1 100
Jenifer L. Abao Member v 3 ] 100
Rita T. Dela Cruz Member v 3 ] 100
Teresita D. Padel Member v 3 ] 100
(January 1 to December 31, 2019)

Brenda F. Lumbao Secretary v 6 2 89
Philip Arnold P. Tuafno Independent v

¥ "EPENae 6 3 100
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Ma. Cleofe Gettie C. Independent v
Sandoval Member

BOARD COMMITTEES

Board members and area coordinators were duly elected in the 13th Annual General
Membership Meeting to become members of one of six KMBA Board Committees.
Immediately after their formation, the committee members select their chairperson
from among themselves. Below are the Board committees composition, and their
members' participation in committee meetings in 2019.

Audit Committee

As directed by the By-Laws, the independent Trustees make up the Audit Committee.
Members of this Committee hold no other Committee position within KMBA during their
term of office. The Audit Committee provides internal audit service, maintains
complete records of its examination and inventories, and submits financial reports
quarterly or as may be required by the BoT or general assembly.

The Audit Committee deliberated on the following matters in seven (7) meetings held
last year:

1. Results of the compliance, financial, and operational audits

Review of possible related party transactions;

Claims Settlement Policy

Presentation and short listing of potential audit firm and compiler;

Selection of audit firm and compiler for 2020 financial statements;

Initial findings of the external auditor;

Exit meeting and presentation of audited financial reports.

NookowN

The Committee played a key role in reviewing the KMBA's financial performance, prior
to the independent review of the external auditor. Also, the Committee
recommended the engagement of the services of the external auditor and compiler
to the General Assembly. The Internal Audit Service of the KSO has been working with
the Committee for the conduct of the internal audit.

Table No. 6 Attendance: Audit Committee

Committee Member Designation Meetings Attended | % to total meetings
Philip Arnold P. Tuano | Chairperson 7 100%
Ma. Cleofe Gettie C. |Member 7 100%
Sandoval
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Treasury Committee

The Treasury Committee reviews, and submits to the Board its well-considered
recommendations on financial matters. The committee held a total of five (5) meetings
in 2019, with the following agenda:

Feasibility study on the KMBA building as property investment;

MIMAP pooled investments managed by BPI Bayanihan Balanced Fund;
MERALCO Fixed Rate Bonds

Investment in Petron Preferred shares Series 3B

Placement in Security Bank

Al Sl A

Table No. 7 Attendance: Treasury Committee

Committee Member Designation Meetings Attended | % to total meetings
Enriqueta V. Navarro Chairperson 5 100%
Lilibeth C. Molina Member 5 100%

Noel Tolentino Member 5 100%
Atty. Eduardo Pangan Member 5 100%

Product Development and Innovation Committee

This Committee is tasked to develop new and/or additional benefit packages and
services that meet the emerging needs of KMBA members. Part of its tasks is to
enhance processes in the area of claims settflement. It also subjects to periodic review
KMBA's partnership agreements with other insurance providers, including the set of
benefits accorded by the products they offer to the members.

Last year, this Committee convened four (4) fimes to tackle the following concerns:
1. K-Bente Group Policy Renewadal

2. Implementation on the Increase in membership fee

3. Renewal of K-kalinga Policy

Table No. 8 Altendance: Product Development and Innovation Committee

Committee Member Designation Meetings Attended | % to total meetings
Brenda F. Lumbao Chairperson 4 100%
Meneliza Clete Member 3 80%
Francisca Salcedo Member 4 100%
Josanie Lagnason Member 4 100%
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Election and Nomination Committee

As mandated, the Committee oversaw the orderly conduct of elections, from the
Trustees who will fill Board seats, to the composition of every committee. To prepare it
for its all-important role, the Committee held five (5) meetings last year to discuss the
following agenda.

Schedule of activities in preparation for 2019 Board election

1.

2. Selection process and panel interview of board candidates

3. Preparation of proxy voting forms, distribution process and timeline

4, Review of the election guidelines and process, canvassing of votes and
consolidation of all proxy vote form

5. Schedule and process of proxy vote during annual general meeting

Table No. 9 Attendance: Election and Nomination Committee

Committee Member Designation Meetings Attended | % to total meetings
Philip Arnold P. Tuano Chairperson 5 100%

Ma. Cleofe Gettie C. Member 4 80%
Sandoval

Emelda Castro Member 4 80%

Nelly Vengano Member 5 100%

Ethics Committee

The Ethics Committee ensures compliance with the Association’s Code of Ethics and
Conduct. Complaints for non-compliance with the Code, or violations of the Anti-
Fraud and AMLA Manuals, are received by the Committee, which thereafter conducts
initial investigation.

The Committee met four (4) times in 2019 for semestral assessments of adherence to
the ethical conduct.

Review of Organization Code of Ethics

Review of Anti-fraud and AMLA Manual, Anti-Corruption Policy
Review of Board Assessment Tools

Conduct of Board Assessment

e
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Table No. 10 Attendance: Ethics Committee

Committee Designation Meetings Attended | % to total meetings
Member
Wenifreda F. Chairperson 4 100%
Rodriguez
Leticia T. Rodriguez Member 4 100%
Chona B. Capayas Member 4 100%
Isabel M. lliw-iliw Member 4 100%

Risk Committee

The Committee studies various issues material to the operations of KMBA, and prepares
strategies to reduce, if not completely avoid, such risks from having negative effects
on the Association’s operations.

The Risk Committee was actively in coordination with the KSO Risk Management
Committee to come up with arisk management plan, with particular focus on product
risks.

Last year, this Committee convened Three (3) times to tackle the following concerns:
1. Review of KMBA's Risk Indicator
2. Presentation of Draft Risk Management Manual

3. Finalization of Risk Management manual

Table No. 11 Attendance: Ethics Risk Committiee

Committee Designation Meetings Attended | % to total meetings
Member
Brenda F. Lumbao Chairperson 3 100%
Josephine Abugan Member 3 100%
Alma Gilbaliga Member 3 100%
Marivic Loterte Member 2 80%
Maritess Villadores Member 2 80%

Special Projects Committee

The Construction Committee was constituted by the Board in 2018 and was activated
when building construction began. It conducted periodic visits in the construction site
to check, in coordination with the architect, the progress of the project. Constant
updates on the status of construction were provided the Board.
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The Committee is composed of the following members:
. Chona B. Capayas

. Isabel M. lliw-iliw

. Silvida R. Antiquera

The committee met five (5) times to discuss the following matters:

Variation orders and additional budget
Purchase of various equipment for new building
Hiring of security services

Variation and change orders

hOON—

BOARD OF ADVISERS

K-Coop General Manager Maria Anna de Rosas-Ignacio, former KMBA Presidents
Leticia Rodriguez and Chona Capayas, and KMBA Board emeritus Wenifreda
Rodriguez were ever so reliable in offering invaluable inputs on financial and
programmatic matters being considered by the Board of Trustees.

Members of the advisory group were always present in every regular and special
meeting of the Trustees.
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REMUNERATION POLICY FOR THE BOARD AND THE GENERAL MANAGER

KMBA being a non-profit association, its Trustees, Board Committee members, and
Advisers do not receive compensation for their services. However, since the regular
Trustees and committee members themselves belong to urban poor communities, the
Association adopted the standing policy that only entitles them to actual
reimbursements of the monitoring and transportation expenses incurred when they
perform their respective functions.

In 2019, KMBA released a total of Php127,500.00 for reimbursements of the Trustees
transportation expenses in attending their regular and special meetings.

Table No. 12 Transportation expenses reimbursement

Trustee No. of Meetings Attended Amount Reimbursed (in
PhP)

Isabel M. lliw-iliw 6 P 9,000.00
Marissa A. Loyola 5 P 7,500.00
Brenda F. Lumbao 11 P 16,500.00
Ma. Teresa G. Bucad 5 P 7,500.00
Elizabeth G. Fuentes ) P 9,000.00
Anita L. Manundo 5 P 7.500.00
Marilyn C. Aldave 5 P 7,500.00
Philip Arnold P. Tuano 10 P 15,000.00
Ma. Cleofe Gettie C. 8 P 12,000.00
Sandoval

Enrigueta V. Navarro 4 P 6,000.00
Alma D. Gilbaliga 4 P 6,000.00
Ma. Lilibeth C. Molina 4 P 6,000.00
Jenifer L. Abao 4 P 6,000.00
Rita T. Dela Cruz 4 P 6,000.00
Teresita D. Padel 4 P 6,000.00

The process of setting the compensation of the General Manager, and any subsequent
review of the same, begins with the work of the Human Resources Management and
Development Service, which presents certain parameters and considerations to the
Human Resource (HR) Committee. Primary considerations include prevailing industry

rate and the scope of work of the General Manager.
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The HR Committee oversees the compensation and benefits policy across all
KASAGANA-KA organizations, including the KMBA. One Trustee from KMBA sits as
member in the KSO-wide HR Committee. In turn, the HR Committee submits its
recommendations to the KMBA Board of Trustees, which convenes in an executive
session, sans the General Manager, for its decision on the matter.

The General Manager receives a monthly compensation equivalent to NINETY-FOUR
THOUSAND NINE HUNDRED FORTY FOUR AND 35/100 (Php 94,944.35) based on the
recommendations made by the HR Committee and duly approved by the Board of
Trustees of KMBA.

Performance Appraisals of the Board, Committee Members, and the General Manager

Every semester, each Trustee undertakes a self-assessment of her/his role and
contributions in the Board. Each of them also rates the performance of the Board as a
body. This regular self-assessment helps them identify the areas for improvement in
Board governance, including efficiency in addressing urgent matters requiring Board
action.

Committee members also allot portion of one of their meetings to assess their
performance individually and as a body. Results of the assessment are useful in
improving coordination, setting meeting agenda, and completing the work within the
planned target dates.

Moreover, the Board meets in an executive session to evaluate the performance of the
General Manager at the end of each semester. The assessment includes both
quantitative and qualitative feedback. The results of the evaluation becomes the basis
for the grant of performance bonus of the General Manager. The same process of
performance evaluation and grant of performance bonus apply for all KMBA
employees.

OTHER CORPORATE GOVERNANCE UPDATES

Independent Trustees

The independent Trustee is a person who has no business, relationship, or other position
with KMBA or its parther organizations which could, or could reasonably be perceived
to, materially interfere with the exercise of her independent judgment in carrying out

responsibilities as a member of the Board of Trustees.

The KMBA has two independent members in the nine-person Board of Trustees. Mr.
Philip Arnold Tuano started serving the Board in 2017, while Atty. Maria Cleofe Gettie C.
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Sandoval joined the Board a year later. Their professional insights in the fields of
economics and law, respectively, have been invaluable during Board deliberations
and decision-making. In particular, Mr. Tuano lead the conduct of the feasibility study
of the viability of the KMBA building as property investment. Atty. Sandoval, on the
other hand, reviews legal concerns of the Association, including its exposure to tax
liabilities.

As independent Trustees, the two provide important work in the Audit Committee.

Internal and Independent Audits

KMBA shares internal audit services with the KASAGANA-KA Synergizing Organizations.
As earlier mentioned, the Audit Committee is in close coordination with the KSO Internall
Audit Service for the review of internal audit processes as part of an internal audit plan.

The internal auditor reports directly to the Board of Trustees, regarding her/his
independent and objective evaluation of the Association's financial and operational
business activities, including its corporate governance and/or operational efficiency.
The KSO Internal Audit Service has been tapped by KMBA to do audit of specific
internal processes.

As laid out in the By-Laws, Governance Manual, and IC regulations, the selection
process before an external auditor is engaged is first vetted at the level of the Audit
Committee, which submits its recommendations to the Board of Trustees. The Board-
approved selection is submitted to the KMBA members during the annual general
meeting for the membership's ultimate determination. The external auditor provides
unbiased, professional opinion on the truthfulness of KMBA's financial statements and
assesses the systems in place to protect the Association from various financial risks.

For the independent audit of the 2019 Financial Statements, the general membership
approved the engagement of the audit firm of Php 285,626.88. Total fees incurred for
the firm's auditing services amounted to Php 285,626.88, inclusive of Value Added Taxes

(VAT) and other out-of-pocket expenses.
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Governance Manual and Code of Ethics

Consistent with the principle of tfransparency, the Governance Manual is available in
the KMBA website for reference of any member or interested party.

The General Manager is designated as the Association's Compliance Officer, tasked
to establish a monitoring and evaluation system and track compliance of Trustees,
management team, and employees with the KMBA Corporate Governance Manual.
For this purpose, the General Manager taps other members of the management team
to facilitate the effective and efficient performance of said tasks. With the General
Manager as Compliance Officer directly accountable to the Board, KMBA's full
compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance is ensured.

The Association has in place a Code of Conduct and Ethics, that is required to be
observed and complied with by all frustees, officers, and employees in dealing with
members and other stakeholders within and outside KMBA. Included in the Code are
standards of conduct and basic principles for ensuring the proper discharge of one's
duties and responsibilities, such as not using one's position to make profit or to acquire
benefit or advantage; avoiding situations that compromise one's impartiality;
maintaining professional integrity; and enhancing skills and understanding of the
Association's operations and related activities.

Violations of the Governance Manual and the Code of Conduct and Ethics are
offenses that KMBA will strive to properly address, in order to avoid ill effects on
corporate affairs and business operations. To this end, KMBA encourages any party
who may have knowledge of such violations to report them in good faith to
management or to the Board.

Management of Key Risks

With the creation of the Risk Management Committee, KMBA looks to strengthen its risk
management policy and undertake periodic assessment of the various risks that KMBA
faces in all areas of operations and administration, approximate their probability, and
determine ways to minimize, if not completely avoid their negative effects.

Liquidity Risk
This refers to the risk that the Association will not be able to meet its financial obligations
as they fall due, basically from lack of funding to finance its growth and capital

expenditures.

The Board and management work closely to manage the Association's liquidity profile
by ensuring that adequate funding is available at all times to meet commitments as
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these arise, without incurring unnecessary costs, and to be able to access funding
when needed.

Credit Risk

This involves the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an
obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. In the case of KMBA, its
receivable balances are carefully monitored on an ongoing basis to ensure that its
exposure to impairment is not significant.

Member credit risk is managed by analyzing the credit risk for each new member
before standard payment and appropriate delivery terms and conditions are offered.
Outstanding receivables are regularly monitored. The credit quality of the Association's
financial assets that are neither past due not impaired is considered to be good quality
and expected to be collectible without any credit losses.

Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by ensuring that deposit
arrangements are with reputable and financially sound counter-parties.

The credit quality of the Association's financial assets is evaluated using internal credit
rating. Financial assets are considered as high grade if the counter-parties are not
expected to default in settling their obligations, thus credit risk exposure is minimal.
These counter-parties include banks, related parties and members who pay on or
before the due date. KMBA's bases in grading its financial assets are as follows:

High grade. These are receivables which have a high probability of collection (the
counterparty has the apparent ability to satisfy the obligation and the security on the
receivables are readily enforceable).

Standard. These are receivables where collection is probable due to the reputation
and the financial ability of the counterparty to pay, but which have been outstanding
for a certain period of time.

Substandard. Receivables that can be collected provided KMBA makes persistent
effort to collect them.

Compliance Risk
This arises from violations or non-conformity with laws, rules and regulations, circulars,
and prescribed practices of the Insurance Commission, and other regulatory bodies,

that may expose KMBA to fines and penalties.

In managing these risks, no less than the General Manager performs the vital role of the
Compliance Officer. KMBA prepares an annual compliance calendar that guides it

2019 ANNUAL REPORT m_



on reportorial requirements and the deadlines set for each. Regular communications
with the network also help in keeping the Association abreast with developments in the
industry regulatory landscape.

Financial Performance Indicators

KMBA has been consistently compliant with financial policies and administrative
regulations implemented by the Insurance Commission. Specifically, it strictly adheres
to the following policies:

=  Administrative costs shall not exceed 20% of the Association's total gross revenue;
and
» High ratio in the Risk-Based Capital (RBC) framework

Non-financial Performance Indicators

KMBA takes pride in its 100% compliance with its 24-hour claims settlement policy. It
represents management’s sincere dedication to its members, especially at a time of
great loss. It speaks of KMBA's operational efficiency and, in a sense, financial
soundness.

The assessment rating from the ASEAN Corporate Governance Scorecard is also a
good gauge of how KMBA fares relative to the rest of the industry. Understanding that
good governance is key to maintaining its success, KMBA strives for a better rating
every year and takes note of areas that require additional effort and attention. Over
the last four years, KMBA's rating has been climbing significantly.

Policy on Dividends

Being a non-stock corporation, KMBA does not declare dividends for distribution to its
members.

Nevertheless, the amended Insurance Code of the Philippines, implemented by
Circular Letter No. 2015-46 dated 8 September 2015, allows mutual benefit associations
like KMBA to transfer the excess of its free and unassigned surplus to the members'
benefits fund for distribution to members, whether in cash or in kind, and after having
been duly verified by the Insurance Commission.

Procurement Policy

The government’s procurement law is largely the basis of KMBA's procurement policy.
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In purchasing office supplies and equipment and in contracting for services, at least
three price quotations are secured from different suppliers and service providers. In
making a choice, consideration is given not only to the cost, but also to quality and
value for money.

For big-ticket projects such as the construction of the Members' Center, a bidding
process is adopted to ensure that engagements with suppliers and contractors are
impartial and transparent. In the past, KMBA even organized an ad hoc Bids and
Awards Committee to handle several procurement activities for the various
requirements of construction.

The Policy also prohibits transactions involving solicitation, and directly or indirectly
accepting gifts, commission and other forms of payment from members, suppliers and
other parties in exchange for favourable treatment.

Related-Party Transactions

The Audit Committee, which is comprised entirely of independent trustees, reviews
related-party transactions, particularly those which may involve possible conflicts of
interests that may be to the disadvantage of KMBA.

Related party includes: (a) Members of KMBA's Board of Trustees, sister organization
KDCI, K-Coop and partner organization; (b) KMBA's General Manager and key officers,
including anyone who directly reports to the Board of Trustees; and (c) any person
whose judgment or decisions could be influenced as a consequence of an
arrangement or relationship between or involving themselves and any person
mentioned above.

Upon election, tfrustees and committee members accomplish a Declaration of Material
Interests, so that any related-party transactions will be conducted in an arm's length
basis.

In this year's review of related-party transactions as discussed by the Audit Committee
in one of its meetings, no material interests or dealings with any related party was found.
Environment-friendly Value Chain

Electronic means of reporting to the Board, the membership, and all stakeholders have

been tapped by KMBA for years. These means of information exchange have also
facilitated communication and coordination with associate members, partners, and of

course international industry friends.
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As part of its value chain, KMBA strives to monitor all its engagements with suppliers and
contractors to check whether they practice good governance, including in its
relationship with the natural environment. These efforts were particularly evident in the
engagement of the building contractor, which reports to the architect and the ad hoc
Construction Committee the quality of the materials they use in the construction.

Members' and Employees' Health and Safety

Employees, as partners of the members in achieving the Association’s goals, are
invaluable assets of KMBA. Caring for their healthy and safety is therefore paramount.
Part of KMBA's health benefits for employees is the annual physical examination (APE).
Access to affordable flu vaccine is also extended to them. In 2019, 12 employees took
the APE, while 12 availed of the flu vaccine. In addition, all 12 employees are covered
by company-initiated health insurance through Valuecare.

In partnership with KDCI, laboratory and eye care services are available to all,
members and employees alike. Also, the tfop causes for policy-holders’ death are
being monitored by KMBA so that interventions may be introduced, where possible, to
improve the health of members. In 2019, the top 5 causes of deaths, as reported
through the BLIP, are cardiovascular, respiratory, hematological, neurological, and
gastrointestinal.

Table No. 13 Top 5 causes of death

Cause of Death Number Percentage
Cardiovascular 283 51%
Respiratory 75 14%
Neurological 43 8%
Hematological 37 7%
Gastrointestinal 30 5%

Programs for Members' Welfare

Aside from looking after members’' healthy, programs for members' welfare have been
discussed in the previous sections of this Annual Report. These include educational
assistance under the Kuya Jun Scholarship Program; aid for members affected by
calamities; K-Bente insurance coverage formembers and dependents fully paid by the
KMBA; and capacity-building and leadership programs for officers and coordinators.

The Association provides avenues for members to participate in policy determination
and decision-making through their KMBA Coordinators' periodic meeting. KMBA
reports to the general membership through Roadshows and the annual general

meeting.
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Rewards Policy

Periodic appraisal of employees’ performance are done, based on which Board-
approved incentives are awarded.

Creditors' Rights

One concrete way by which the Association seeks to safeguard creditors' rights is to
keep them timely informed of the status of the financial performance and operations
of KMBA. Reports, documents and materials are periodically and timely uploaded in
the KMBA website for access of the general public. Members, who are among the
Association's creditors, have the right to inspect association books and records,
including minutes of Board meetings and performance reports, and shall be furnished
with annual reports and financial statements, without costs or restrictions.

KMBA respects creditors’ rights by making sure that the amount of its assets are
sufficient to cover its debts.

Anti-corruption Policy

KMBA upholds full respect to our laws and the people that implement them. As such,
dealings with government agencies and their officers are always made in faithful
adherence to established rules and procedures, without resorting to unlawful shortcuts
or illicit fransactions.

Similarly, KMBA strictly enforces a no-gift policy so as not compromise the integrity of its
operations, improperly influence decision-making, avoid conflicts of interest, or any
perception thereof as a result of receiving gifts. Likewise, KMBA deals with its frustees,
employees, suppliers, partners, government agencies and other parties at arm's length
and with full fransparency, in observance of established policies and in recognition of
either party's integrity.

In support of this policy, violations thereof will be dealt with appropriately, after an
investigation process, as discussed in the succeeding sections.
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Protecting the Whistle-blower

The Association firmly stands against any form of corruption, harassment and other
forms of threat committed against any member, employee, or Trustee. Appropriate
mechanisms are in place to receive complaints of corruption, retaliation and
harassment and protect the whistle-blower who report in good faith the incident.

All stakeholders are encouraged to voice their concerns or complaints about illegal
and/or unethical practices involving any KMBA member, employee, or officer. KMBA
maintains a policy to protect the identity of the whistle-blower, maintain confidentiality
of the disclosure, validate the claims and reports, and prevent any form of retaliation
by the complained parties.

KMBA shall deal with equal force against any one who shall lodge a malicious report
of retaliation or harassment, based on personal bias, false or misleading information, or
for personal gain.

Handling of complaints

Complaints are received by the Ethics Committee, which then conducts initial
investigation and/or inquiry for non-compliance with or violation of the Code of Ethics
and Conduct, and other illegal or corrupt practices. The Committee then submits its
investigation report and recommendations to the Board, for appropriate action.

For complaints against KMBA employees related to its value chain, the President of the
Association has been authorized to receive complaints. Submission of complaints may
be in confidence or anonymous. Below is the KMBA President's contact information:

President: Enriqueta V. Navarro

Landline: 89907915

Mobile No.: 09192983870

Email Address: kasaganaka.mba@gmail.com
Website: www.kmba.org.ph
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REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

expressing love to the community by serving developmental and social activities

It is the love for the community that drives the association’s willingness to extend hand
to those who need it the most. It is a dream to provide hope to those who felt helpless
when nothing else in the world does not seem to be in place. KMBA endeavor to be
that shadow that will lift up its members to give them courage to face another beautiful
day. Hence, it personally shaped its community development services as that which
will reach out and exceed expectations of its members who are generally members of
the urban poor sector.

Calamity Assistance

Natural catastrophes are inevitable. It choose no specific place or specific people. In
the year 2018, various members of KMBA specifically from Novaliches, Taytay,
Montalban, RHS, Quezon City, TandangSora, Fairview, Batasan and GMA were a victim
of natural disasters. These are urban poor communities who are highly populated and
prone to exposures of typhoon, flood, and fire. Without any hesitation, Php 501,391.57
calamity assistance were released to 85 claims of the affected families of members.
This helped them cope up with sadness of losing their houses and build their devastated
homes with hope and smile in their faces.

Educational Assistance

Education is the hope of our future leaders. It is the primary form to acquire knowledge
and experience which our children has the right and deserve to have. The creation of
KMBA's Kuya Jun Scholarship Program is not just a platform to allow children to learn
but also an ignition to achieve and mold future teachers, doctors, lawyers, engineers
and all other kind of profession who will lead our nation. It is with glee that KMBA has
granted 101 scholars in 2018 with a total accumulated amount of Php 590,000.00
educational assistance. This helped the children to pay for their tuition; purchase
uniforms, books, bags and other school supplies; as well as to support their daily meal
allowance that will put their parent’s mind at ease because their children are not
starving while studying. KMBA's commitment to provide educational assistance to
deserving children of their members is not just a social mission but an achievement of
the association.

Protection Against Anti-Corruption Activities

It is clear to the Board and Management the roots to which the association is created.
It highlights the value of the wealth of the association as one which is dedicated to
serve the urban poor sector. Hence, in protecting the association against anti-
corruption activities, the association strictly implement no Gift Policy to combat any
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conflict of interest which may be confined in receiving favors and compliments,
whether monetary or non-monetary in value. This matter is also for consideration for the
risk of the association. Thus, in the year 2018, the management participated to a risk
management training in order to properly evaluate and monitor existence of anti-
corruption activities. This edge is a way of KMBA to maintain the integrity and trust of its
stakeholders against unethical standards and to protect their interest in the association.

Members’ Grievances

The family of Kasagana-Ka, to which KMBA belongs, ensure that the members have
their own means to communicate their concerns to the organization. Addressing these
concerns is more than just hearing the matters but rather to respond with eagerness to
help and to mitigate any pressing concerns which may put risk on the association’s
reputation. This is by the use of the Ulat Hotline which the members may call to raise
questions, concerns, feedback and potential issues; and the Ulat ng Pangyayari Form
which the members may fill up in case of reporting complaints or suspicious activities.
These reports are properly logged and coordinated with the help of the designated
Internal Audit Services of the association.

Ensuring the Rights of the Creditors

Updating the association’s creditors (if any) is given due importance through KMBA's
transparency on its financial performance. Periodically and in a timely manner, KMBA
make use of its publicly available welbsite to upload reports, materials and documents
which is necessary for the creditors’ information. Further, it conducts Road Shows or
Sipat-Landas participated by the members of the association to keep them up to date
to KMBA's products, services, status, achievements, performance and plans. Valuing
the members’ right to information, this activity is conducted every year in the
respective residential areas of the members.
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MANAGEMENT TEAM

C,OOP ERAT/VE?a

'70'

With its growing set of products, increasing complexity of tfransactions, and plans for
expansion, KMBA is now a Twelve-member strong workforce, with the General
Manager at the helm, providing general directions, supervision, management and
administrative control on all the operating units, subject to such limitations as may be
set forth by the Board of Trustees or the General Assembly.

Training and Development for Employees

As a matter of policy, every member of the management team undergoes training
and development every year to keep themselves abreast with latest developments in
areas such as technology, accounting rules, government regulations, microinsurance
topics, and management strategies.

The Board, with the assistance of the Management Team, adopts an annual training
and development plan for its employees. Apart from the Plan, the employees may
submit a written request to undertake specific courses or training sessions, which are
aligned with the KMBA's capacity development requirements.

In 2019, employees benefited from the following training activities:
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Table No. 14 Trainings and seminars attended by staff

Date Training Course/Seminar Participant
February 7-8 Regular Annual Recollection KMBA BoT and staff
February 9 Team-building KMBA BoT and staff
February 15-16 Staff Roadshow at Estancia De Analyn A. Shih

Lorenzo, San Mateo Rizal Evelyn A. Lagmay
Jean Grace Poneve Aimonte
Hannah Grace S. Bulatao
Mcquen R. Abellano
Diobert F. Calanza
Adrian P. San Andres
February 22 Building and Condo Management | GM Silvida R. Antiquera
Program at Inquirer Academy Analyn A. Shih
March 20 Learning Session on Investment GM Silvida R. Antiquera
Strategy and Policy Development  Evelyn A. Lagmay
at Ace Hotel & Suites Pasig City
March 22 Seminar on Company Policy at OM Evangeline E. Pe
RCBC Plaza Makati Analyn A. Shih
March 29 Job Evaluation and Design of Analyn A. Shih
Salary Structure at RCBC Plaza
Makati
May 15-16 Lakbay Aral in Dumaguete City Jake C. Villanueva
June 5-7 Governance & AMLA Workshop at | Jake C. Villanueva
Manila Prince Hotel
July 4-5 7Fs at Estancia Hotel GM Silvida R. Antiquera
Evelyn A. Lagmay
OM Evangeline E. Pe
Diobert P. Calanza
Adrian P. San Andres
Jake C. Villanueva
Mcquen R. Abellano
Richard L. Monteron
July 22-24 Management Forum at B Hotel KMBA BoT and KMBA Staff
Timog
July 26 PERAA Millionaires Club Awarding at/ GM Silvida R. Antiquera
Alu Hotel Davao
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July 31-August 1 Study Tour, Group Visit at NTUC Evelyn A. Lagmay

Income Singapore Analyn A. Shih
Diobert P. Calanza

August 14-16 Psycho Spiritual Integration (PSI) at/ Analyn A. Shih

Mary Hill Retreat House Diobert P. Calanza
Adrian P. San Andres

August 19 IC Training for Online Quarterly Evelyn A. Lagmay
Submission of Compliance Analyn A. Shih
Requirements hosted by IC at Aljon L. Laureano
Insurance Commission, UN Avenue
Manila

September 18-19  6th Philippine Tax Congress at Evelyn A. Lagmay
Crowne Plaza Ortigas City Analyn A. Shih

September 18-19  |Psycho Spiritual Integration (PSI) at|Adrian P. San Andres
Mary Hill Retreat House

September 25-27 | SEAMLESS at SMX Convention Aljon L. Laureano
Center, MOA Pasay City Hannah Grace S. Bulatao
October 9-10 Governance & AMLA Workshop at | Jean Grace Poneve Almonte
Bayview Park Hotel Hannah Grace S. Bulatao
October 15-19 Psycho Spiritual Infegration (PSl) Analyn A. Shih

Diobert P. Calanza
Adrian P. San Andres

October 18 IFRS Learning Session at MIMAP FM Evelyn Lagmay
October 18 Mandatory Compliance & Analyn A. Shih
Updates situation at Red Hotel
Cubao
October 29 Fundamentals of Anti-Money Analyn A. Shih

Laundering at BSP Manila

November 11-16 ICMIF Biennial Conference GM Silvida R. Antiquera

November 22-23 Strategic Planning at Estancia KMBA Board
De Lorenzo San Mateo Rizal

December 4-6 Leadership Training at Bayview | Enriqueta V. Navarro
Park Hotel Alma D. Gilbaliga
Lillbeth C. Molina
Rita T. Dela Cruz
Jenifer L. Abao
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Teresita D. Padel

December 9 Occupational Safety and Health | Analyn A. Shih
Training at Ovaldesk Training
Center, Quezon Avenue

gs Income

® @ e

In addition, the following staff are pursuing baccalaureate and post-graduate
degrees:

Employee Course
Evangeline Pe Expanded Tertiary Education Equivalency  and
(Operations Manager) | Accreditation  Program (ETEEAP) in  Community
Development at St. Joseph's College
Diobert Calanza Master of Arts in Business Administration at the National
(Account Officer) College of Business and Arts

More members of the staff are expected to take short courses and national
certifications next year.

Commitment to Good Governance
The Board of Trustees and the Management Team of KMBA are committed to the

principles and best practices on good governance as expressed in its Articles of
Incorporation, By-Laws, and the Corporate Governance Manual, and as provided by
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pertinent laws and government regulations. To this end, Board and management will
maintain transparency and accountability to its members and other stakeholders, and
shall manage its operations with integrity. Periodic disclosure of relevant information to
the public and specific stakeholders will be complied with. Greater participation of
members in policy determination and decision-making shall continually be
encouraged. Checks and balances and the appropriate control mechanisms shall
always be in place and further strengthened.

The General Manager, as Compliance Officer of the Association, closely monitors the
implementation of the Corporate Governance Manual. KMBA is pleased to report its
faithful adherence to the Code of Corporate Governance and its very own
Governance Manual.

Board Policy Review

The Board reviewed the Association's vision and mission statements, and its corporate
goals (VMGs). It found no need to revise the VMGs since they remain clear expressions
of the objectives and needs of the membership, still to be achieved and likewise
relevant to the changing industry environment. The programs and services are likewise
still in alignment with the VMG. These as well as the policies and implementing rules
shall again be assessed by the Board in 2020 in order to improve the quality of services
of KMBA.

Quarterly Evaluation and Planning

It has been the policy of the KMBA to meet a month after each quarter to consider its
accomplishnments vis-a-vis its targets. Adjustments in plans and implementation
strategies are discussed, all with the objective of serving as many members as possible,
while maintaining the financial strength of the Association.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO ACCOMPANY INCOME TAX RETURN

The Members and the Board of Trustees
Kasagana-Ka Mutual Benefit Association, Inc.
(A Non-stock, Not-for-profit Corporation)
Rm. 504 F&L Building, Brgy. Holy Spirit
Commonwealth Avenue, Quezon City

We have audited the financial statements of Kasagana-Ka Mutual Benefit Association, Inc.
(A Non-stock, Not-for-profit Corporation) (“the Association”), for the year ended December 31, 2019
on which we have rendered the attached report dated February 28, 2020.

In compliance with Revenue Regulations No. V-20, we are stating that no partner of our Firm is related
by consanguinity or affinity to the president, manager or Board of Trustees of the Association.

ROXAS CRUZ TAGLE AND CO.

Clark Joseph z BaléorI

Partner

CPA Certificate No. 0119212

Tax Identification No. 248-709-974

BIR Accreditation No. 08-001682-014-2019, issued on September 27, 2019,
effective until September 26, 2022

SEC Accreditation No. 1809-A-SEC, Group B, issued on March 31, 2020,
effective until March 31, 2023

IC Accreditation No. SP-2019-001-0, issued on January 31, 2019,
effective until January 30, 2022

PTR No. 814-7800, issued on January 21, 2020, Makati City

February 28, 2020
Makati City
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Members and the Board of Trustees
Kasagana-Ka Mutual Benefit Association, Inc.
(A Non-stock, Not-for-profit Corporation)
Rm. 504 F&L Building, Brgy. Holy Spirit
Commonwealth Avenue, Quezon City

Report on the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Kasagana-Ka Mutual Benefit Association, Inc.
(A Non-stock, Not-for-profit Corporation) (the “Association”), which comprise the statements of
financial position as at December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the statements of comprehensive income,
statements of changes in fund balance and statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Association as at December 31, 2019 and 2018, and its financial performance
and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards (PFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Association
in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in
the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with PFRS and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to
fraud or error.

In prepanng the financial statements, management is responSIble for assessing the Assocratlon S
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of -accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Association or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative to do so.

rean of Tn‘“&‘"mﬂ Revenue
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the %&soqaﬁon s fmancval pregaratlon
process.
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that include our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit is conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of our audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Association’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Association’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Association to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on the Supplementary Information Required by the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR)

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements
taken as a whole. The supplementary information as disclosed in Note 25 to the financial statements
is presented for purposes of filing with the BIR and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements. In our
opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole.

ROXAS CRUZ TAGLE AND CO.

Clark Josepli C. Babor

Partner

CPA Certificate No. 0119212

Tax Identification No. 248-709-974

BIR Accreditation No. 08-001682-014-2019, issued on September 27, 2019,
effective until September 26, 2022

SEC Accreditation No. 1809-A-SEC, Group B, issued on March 31, 2020,
effective until March 31, 2023

IC Accreditation No. SP-2019-001-0, issued on January 31, 2019,
effective until January 30, 2022

PTR No. 814-7800, issued on January 21, 2020, Makati City

February 28, 2020
Makati City
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KASAGANA-KA MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION, INC.

(A Non-stock, Not-for-profit Corporation)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

Note 2019 2018
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5 P23,755,512 R39,567,662
Receivables 6 4,307,661 11,773,126
Short-term investment 7 5,000,000 6,051,351
Other current assets 617,438 547,806
Total Current Assets 33,680,611 57,939,945
Noncurrent Assets
Financial assets at FVOCI 8 40,018,363 18,000,729
Investments in debt securities 9 84,178,366 86,678,366
Investment properties 10 58,951,874 44,062,276
Property and equipment, net 11 5,469,783 1,232,676
Computer software, net 12 954,473 1,087,649
Other noncurrent assets 328,758 246,867
Total Noncurrent Assets 189,901,617 151,308,563
P223,582,228 R209,248,508
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 13 R1,314,838 R698,714
Liability on individual equity value 14 10,536,399 5,562,364
Aggregate reserve for trust liability 14 8,628,054 7,026,181
Basic contingent benefit reserve 14 424,540 372,525
Optional benefit reserve 14 2,215,061 1,111,216
Claims payable on basic contingent benefit 15 580,382 502,499
Total Current Liabilities 23,699,274 15,273,499
Noncurrent Liabilities
Liability on individual equity value 14 78,676,528 77,511,541
Aggregate reserve for trust liability 14 44,194,879 42,170,943
Retirement benefit obligation, net 18 2,048,923 199,331
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 124,920,330 - 119,881,815
Total Liabilities 148,619,604 135,155,314
Fund balance '
Restricted balance ‘ ‘ : 16 42,232,120 45,435,874
Unrestricted balance -~ S 16 32,288,557 28,582,612
Accumulated remeasurement gain (loss) on - o e _ ‘ & :
retirement benefit obligation " - 18 (1,576,416) 73,979
Unrealized gain on financial assets at FYOCI i 2,018,363 729
Total fund balance 74,962,624 74,093,194

V Re & B
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See Notes to the Financial Statements. C E
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KASAGANA-KA MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION INC
(A Non-stock, Not-for-profit Corporation)

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

Notes 2019

2018

Revenue

19 R53,599,744

R47,209,170

Benefit expenses

Allocation for liability on individual equity (5,234,806) (11,077,656)
Benefit/claims expenses - BLIP (10,408,508) (8,485,519)
Benefit/claims expenses - Equity value (13,337,848) (7,020,749)
Benefit/claims expenses - CLIP (3,155,000) (1,844,000)
Benefit/claims expenses - HIIP (49,600) -
Collection fees (6,865,802) (4,921,533)
Other expenses for members (26,230) (224,681)
Increase/decrease in aggregate reserve for
trust liability (515,936) (916,696)
Increase/decrease in reserve for
basic contingent fund (42,784) (197,105)
Increase/decrease in liability on individual equity (97,187) -
Increase/decrease in reserve for optional benefit (1,103,845) (286,564)
(40,837,546) (34,974,503)
Revenue before operating expense 12,762,198 12,234,667
Operating expenses 20 (11,331,710) (9,392,408)
Income from operations 1,430,488 2,842,259
Interest income 589 4,068,706 4,368,932
Dividend income 8 789,532 504,000
Realized loss from redemption of
available-for-sale investments 8 - (128,521)
Net income 6,288,726 7,586,670
Other comprehensive income
Item that will be reclassified to profit or loss:
Unrealized gain (loss) on financial assets at FVOCI 8 2,017,634 (590,011)
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Actuarial gain (loss) on retirement benefit obligation 18 (1,650,395) 260,746
367,239 (329,265)
Total comprehensive income P6,655,965 R7,257,405

See Notes to the Financiai Statements.
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2019 2018

Note

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY
Decrease in fund balance

(R5,786,535) (R4,048,163)

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS AT JANUARY 1

(15,812,150) (22,962,159)
39,567,662 62,529,821

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS AT DECEMBER 31

P23,755,512 P39,567,662

See Notes to the Financial Statements.
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KASAGANA-KA MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION, INC.

(A Non-stock, Not-for-profit Corporation)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

Notes 2019 2018
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income PR6,288,726 R7,586,670
Adjustments for:
Increase/decrease in reserve for optional benefit 1,103,845 -
Depreciation 11,20 677,893 290,346
Increase in aggregate reserve for trust liability 515,936 6,132,948
Retirement benefit cost 18,20 199,197 225,365
Amortization 12,20 133,176 122,083
Increase in liability on individual equity value 97,187 10,934,911
Increase/decrease in reserve for basic contingent
fund 42,784 -
Realized loss from redemption of financial assets
at FVOCI 8 - 128,521
Dividend income 8 (789,532) (504,000)
Interest income 5,8,9 (4,068,706) (4,368,932)
Operating income before working capital changes 4,200,506 20,547,912
Decrease (increase) in:
Receivables 7,252,011 (6,351,126)
Short-term investment 1,051,351 (6,051,351)
Other current assets (69,632) (229,518)
Increase (decrease) in:
Trade and other payables 616,124 (385,059)
Liability on individual equity value 6,041,835 -
Aggregate reserve for trust liability 3,109,873 -
Basic contingent benefit reserve 9,231 83,814
Optional benefit reserve - 286,737
Claims payable on basic contingent benefit 77,883 112,590
Net cash flows provided by operating activities 22,289,182 8,013,999
Interest income received 4,282,160 3,806,968
Dividend income received 8 789,532 504,000
Contributions to retirement benefit obligation 18 - (588,532)
Net cash provided by operating activities 27,360,874 11,736,435
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of property and equipment 11 (4,915,000) (1,238,896)
Acquisition of investment properties 10 (14,889,598) (26,198,608) -
Acquisition of financial assets at FVOCI 8 (20,000,000) (5,000,000)
. Increase in other noncurrent assets - (81,891) {84,406)
Proceeds from sale of investment in debt securities . .2,500,000 . —
Proceeds from redemption of financial assets at : : : 2
FVoCi b 8 - 1,871,479
Net cash used in investing activities (37,386,489) (30,650,431)
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KASAGANA-KA MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION, INC.
(A Non-stock, Not-for-profit Corporation)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

1. Reporting Entity

Kasagana-Ka Mutual Benefit Association Inc. (A Non-stock, Not-for-profit Corporation)
(“the Association”) was organized and incorporated under the laws of the Republic of the
Philippines and registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on June 29, 2006
per SEC Registration Number CN200610153. The Association is primarily engaged to promote the
welfare of the poor; to extend financial assistance to its members in the form of death benefit,
medical subsidy, pension and loan redemption assistance; and to ensure continued access to
benefits and resources by actively involving the members in the direct management of the
Association that will include implementation of policies and procedures geared towards
sustainability and improved services.

The Association is a non-stock, non-profit association that no part of the income, which the
Association may obtain as an incident to its operations, shall be distributed as dividends to its
members, trustees or officers subject to the provisions of the Corporation Code on dissolution.
Any profit obtained by the Association as a result of its operations, whenever necessary or proper
shall be used for the furtherance of its purpose.

The registered office address of the Association is at Rm. 504 F&L Building, Brgy. Holy Spirit,
Commonwealth Avenue, Quezon City. The primary place of business of the Association is at
#5 Matimpiin St., Brgy. Pinyahan, Quezon City.

2. Basis of Preparation

Statement of compliance

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in compliance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). PFRS are based on International Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). PFRS consist of PFRS,
Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) and Philippine Interpretations issued by the
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC).

The financial statements were approved and authorized for issuance by the Board of Trustees
(BOT) on February 28, 2020

Basis of measurement i
The financial statements of the Association have been prepared on the historical cost basis,
except for certain financial instruments which are carried at fair value and at amortized cost.

Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Philippine peso (R), which is the functional currency of .
the Association. : : -

R
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3. Significant Accounting Policies

Adoption of New and Amended PFRS :

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except
for the adoption of the following new and amended PFRS which the Association adopted effective
for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019:

« PFRS 16, Leases - PFRS 16 supersedes PAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases-Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal form of a Lease. The standard sets out the
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and
requires almost all leases to be brought onto lessees’ statement of financial position under a
single model (except leases of less than 12 months and leases of low-value assets), eliminating
the distinction between operating and finance leases.

Lessor accounting under PFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from PAS 17. Lessors will continue
to classify leases as either operating or finance leases using similar principles as in PAS 17.
Therefore, PFRS 16 does not have an impact for leases where the Company is the lessor.

« Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 23, Uncertainty Over Income Tax Treatments - The
interpretation provides guidance on how to reflect the effects of uncertainty in accounting
for income taxes under PAS 12, Income Taxes, in particular (i) whether uncertain tax
treatments should be considered separately, (ii) assumptions for taxation authorities’
examinations, (iii) determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses,
unused tax credits and tax rates, and (iv) effect of changes in facts and circumstances.

¢« Amendments to PFRS 9, Financial Instruments - Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation - The amendments allow entities to measure particular prepayable financial
assets with negative compensation at amortized cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income (instead of at fair value through profit or loss) if a specified condition
is met. It also clarifies the requirements in PFRS 9, Financial Instruments for adjusting the
amortized cost of a financial liability when a modification or exchange does not result in its
derecognition (as opposed to adjusting the effective interest rate). The Association will adopt
PFRS 9 and any amendments when it will adopt PFRS 17.

«  Amendments to PAS 12, Income Taxes - Income Tax Consequences of Payments on Financial
Instruments Classified as Equity - The amendments are part of the Annual Improvements to
PFRS 2015-2017 Cycle and clarify that income tax consequences of dividends are linked more
directly to past transactions or events that generated distributable profits than to distribution
to owners and thus, should be recognized in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or
equity according to where the entity originally recognized those past transactions or events.

The adoption of the foregoing new and amended PFRS did not have any material effect on the
financial statements.

e  Annual Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle

¢  PFRS 2, Business ComEinations . o ‘ , o .
The amendments clarify that, when an entity obtains control of.a business that'is a joint
operation, it-applies the requirements for a business combination achieved in stages,
including remeastring previously held interests in the assets and liabilities of the joint
operation at fair value. In doing so, the acquirer remeasures its entire previously held
interest in the joint operation. '
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An entity applies those amendments to business combinations for which the acquisition
date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after
January 1, 2019, with early application permitted.

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Association there is
no transaction where joint control is obtained.

PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements

An entity that participates in, but does not have joint control of, a joint operation might
obtain joint control of the joint operation in which the activity of the joint operation
constitutes a business as defined in PFRS 3. The amendments clarify that the previously
held interests in that joint operation are not remeasured.

An entity applies those amendments to transactions in which it obtains joint control on
or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after
January 1, 2019, with early application permitted.

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Association as there
is no transaction where a joint control is obtained.

PAS 12, Income Taxes

The amendments clarify that the income tax consequences of dividends are linked more
directly to past transactions or events that generated distributable profits than to
distributions to owners. Therefore, an entity recognizes the income tax consequences of
dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where it
originally recognized those past transactions or events.

An entity applies the amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2019, with early application permitted. When the entity first applies those
amendments, it applies them to the income tax consequences of dividends recognized on
or after the beginning of the earliest comparative period.

Since the Association’s current practice is in line with these amendments, they had no
impact on the financial statements of the Association.

PAS 23, Borrowing Costs

The amendments clarify that an entity treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing
originally made to develop a qualifying asset when substantially all of the activities
necessary to prepare that asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

The entity applies the amendments to borrowing costs incurred on or after the beginning
of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies those amendments. An
entity applies those amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2019, with early application permitted.

Since the Association’s current practice is in line with these amendments, they had no
impact on the financial statements of the Association.

(A A
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Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020:

« Amendments to PAS 1 and PAS 8, Definition of Material - The amendments address the
definition of material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on
the basis of those financial statements, which provide financial information about a specific
reporting entity.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2021:

e PFRS 17, Insurance Contracts - This standard will replace PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts. It
requires insurance liabilities to be measured at current fulfillment value and provides a more
uniform measurement and presentation approach to achieve consistent, principle-based
accounting for all insurance contracts. It also requires similar principles to be applied to
reinsurance contracts held and investment contracts with discretionary participation features
issued. Under prevailing circumstances, the impact on the adoption of this new and amended
PFRS is currently being evaluated by management.

In its Commission Circular Letter No. 2018-69, the Insurance Commission deferred the
implementation of PFRS 17 for life insurance and non-life insurance industries to
January 1, 2023.

Current versus noncurrent classification

The Association presents assets and liabilities in the statements of financial position based on
current and noncurrent classification. An asset is current when it is: (a) expected to be realized
or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle; (b) held primarily for the
purpose of trading; (c) expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting period; or
(d) cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least 12 months after the reporting period.

A liability is current when it is: (a) expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;
(b) held primarily for trading; (c) due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period;
or (d) there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting period.

The Association classifies all other assets and liabilities as noncurrent. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are classified as noncurrent.

Financial assets and financial liabilities

Date of recognition. The Association recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in the
statements of financial position when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a
financial instrument. In the case of a regular way purchase or sale of financial assets, recognition
and derecognition, as applicable, is done using settlement date accounting.

initial recognition and measurement. Financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value,
which is the fair value of the consideration given (in case of an asset) or received
(in case of a liability). The initial measurement of financial instruments, except for those
designated at fair vatue through profit and loss (FVPL), includes transaction cost. :
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“Day 1” Difference. Where the transaction in a non-active market is different from the fair value
of other observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation
technique whose variables include only data from observable market, the Association recognizes
the difference between the transaction price and fair value (a “Day 1” difference) in profit or
loss. In cases where there is no observable data on inception, the Association deems the
transaction price as the best estimate of fair value and recognizes “Day 1” difference in profit or
loss when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each
transaction, the Association determines the appropriate method of recognizing the “Day 1”
difference.

Classification. The Association classifies its financial assets at initial recognition under the
following categories: (a) financial assets at FVPL, (b) financial assets at amortized cost and
(c) financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Financial
liabilities, on the other hand, are classified as either financial liabilities at FVPL or financial
liabilities at amortized cost. The classification of a financial instrument largely depends on the
Association’s business model and its contractual cash flow characteristics.

Financial assets and liabilities at FVPL. Financial assets and liabilities at FVPL are either classified
as held for trading or designated at FVPL. A financial instrument is classified as held for trading
if it meets either of the following conditions:

e it is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near
term;

e on initial recognition, it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are
managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

« itisaderivative (except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a designated
and effective hedging instrument).

This category includes equity instruments which the Association had not irrevocably elected to
classify at FVOCI at initial recognition. This category includes debt instruments whose cash flows
are not “solely for payment of principal and interest” assessed at initial recognition of the assets,
or which are not held within a business model whose objective is either to collect contractual
cash flows, or to both collect contractual cash flows and sell.

The Association may, at initial recognition, designate a financial asset or financial liability
meeting the criteria to be classified at amortized cost or at FVOCI, as a financial asset or financial
liability at FVPL, if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces accounting mismatch that would
arise from measuring these assets or liabilities.

After initial recognition, financial assets at FVPL and held for trading financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at fair value. Unrealized gains or losses arising from the fair valuation of
financial assets at FVPL and held for trading financial liabilities are recognized in profit or loss.

For financial liabilities designated at FVPL under the fair value option, the amount of change in

fair value that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is recognized in other

comprehensive income (rather than in profit or loss), unless this creates an accounting mismatch.

- Amourits presented in other comprehensive income are not subsequently transferred to profit or
loss. ) T L ¥ ;

As at Decémbef 31,72019 and 2018, the Association does net have fi'nancia_l assets and liabilities
at FVPL. ¢ T ) ) )
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Financial assets at amortized cost. Financial assets shall be measured at amortized cost if both
of the following conditions are met:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial recognition, financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment, if any.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. Gains and losses are recognized in
profit or loss when the financial assets are derecognized and through amortization process.
Financial assets at amortized cost are included under current assets if realizability or
collectability is within 12 months after the reporting period. Otherwise, these are classified as
noncurrent assets.

As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Association’s cash and cash equivalents, receivables, short
term investment, rental deposits, other funds and deposits and investments in debt securities are
included under this category (Notes 5, 6, 7 and 9).

Financial liabilities at amortized cost. Financial liabilities are categorized as financial liabilities
at amortized cost when the substance of the contractual arrangement results in the Association
having an obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder, or to settle
the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for
a fixed number of its own equity instruments.

These financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value less any directly attributable
transaction costs. After initial recognition, these financial liabilities are subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on the issue and fees that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognized or through the amortization process.

As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Association’s trade and other payables are included under
this category (Notes 10 and 13).

Financial Assets at FVOCI. For debt instruments that meet the contractual cash flow
characteristic and are not designated at FVPL under the fair value option, the financial assets
shall be measured at FVOCI if both of the following conditions are met:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose cbjective is to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

For equity instruments, the Association may irrevocably designate the financial asset to be
measured at FVOCI in case the above conditions are not met.

Financial- assets at FVOCI are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. :After initial
recognition, interest income. (calculated using the effective interest rate method), foreign
currency gains or losses and impairment losses of debt instruments measured at FVOCI are
recognized directly in profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognized, the cumulative
gains or losses previously recognized in OCI are reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a
reclassification adjustment. ‘
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Dividends from equity instruments held at FVOCI are recognized in profit or loss when the right
to receive payment is estabhshed unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment. - Foreign currency gains or losses and unrealized gains or losses from
equity instruments are recognized in OCl and presented in the equity section of the statements
of financial position. These fair value changes are recognized in equity and are not reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Reclassification

The Association reclassifies its financial assets when, and only when, it changes its business model
for managing those financial assets. The reclassification is applied prospectively from the first
day of the first reporting period following the change in the business model (reclassification date).

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at amortized cost category to financial
assets at FVPL, any gain or loss arising from the difference between the previous amortized cost
of the financial asset and fair value is recognized in profit or loss.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at amortized cost category to financial
assets at FVOCI, any gain or loss arising from a difference between the previous amortized cost
of the financial asset and fair value is recognized in OCI.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at FVPL category to financial assets at
amortized cost, its fair value at the reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying amount.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at FVOCI category to financial assets
at amortized cost, any gain or loss previously recognized in OCI, and any difference between the
new amortized cost and maturity amount, are amortized to profit or loss over the remaining life
of the investment using the effective interest method. If the financial asset is subsequently
impaired, any gain or loss that has been recognized in OCl is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss.

In the case of a financial asset that does not have a fixed maturity, the gain or loss shall be
recognized in profit or loss when the financial asset is sold or disposed. If the financial asset is
subsequently impaired, any previous gain or loss that has been recognized in OCl is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at FVPL category to financial assets at
FVOCI, its fair value at the reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying amount.
Meanwhile, for a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at FVOCI category to
financial assets at FVPL, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other comprehensive
income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment at the
reclassification date.

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets. A financial asset (or where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a
group of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

e the right to receive cash flows from the asset has exp1red )

¢ the Association retains: the right to receive cash flows. from the financial asset, but has
assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under-a

“pass-through™ arrangement; or

. the Association has transferred its right to receive cash ﬂows from the fmancxal asset and
either (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred confrol of the asset.
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When the Association has transferred its right to receive cash flows from a financial asset or has
entered into a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset nor transferred control of the financial
asset, the financial asset is recognized to the extent of the Association’s continuing involvement
in the financial asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred financial asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the
financial asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Association could be required
to repay.

Financial liabilities. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability
is discharged, cancelled or has expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference
in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statements of comprehensive income.

A modification is considered substantial if the present value of the cash flows under the new
terms, including net fees paid or received and discounted using the original effective interest
rate, is different by at least 10% from the discounted present value of remaining cash flows of the
original liability.

The fair value of the modified financial liability is determined based on its expected cash flows,
discounted using the interest rate at which the Association could raise debt with similar terms
and conditions in the market. The difference between the carrying value of the original liability
and fair value of the new liability is recognized in the statements of comprehensive income.

On the other hand, if the difference does not meet the 10% threshold, the original debt is not
extinguished but merely modified. In such case, the carrying amount is adjusted by the costs or
fees paid or received in the restructuring.

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statements
of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master netting agreements,
and the related assets and liabilities are presented gross in the statements of financial position.

Classification of financial instrument between liability and equity
A financial instrument is classified as liability if it provides for a contractual obligation to:

e Deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity;

e FExchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are
potentially unfavorable to the Association; or

. e Satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another

financial asset for a fixed number of own equity shares.

If the Association does not have an unconditicnal right to avoid delivering cash or another financial

asset to settle its contractual obligation, the obligation meets the definition of a financial
liability. - - £ 7 )

AR

2019 ANNUAL REPORT E_



Insurance contracts
Product classification

Insurance contracts under which the Association (the insurer) has accepted significant insurance
risk from another party (the policy holders) by agreeing to compensate the policy holders if a
specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the policy holder. As a
general guideline, the Association determines whether it has significant insurance risk, by
comparing benefits paid with benefits payable if the insured event did not occur. Insurance
contracts can also transfer financial risks.

Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains as insurance contract for
the remainder of its lifetime, even if the insurance risk reduces significantly during the period,
unless all rights and obligations are extinguished or expired.

Benefits and claims

Claims consist of benefits and claims paid to policyholders, which include excess gross benefit
claims for unit-link insurance contract. Death claims, surrenders and non life insurance claims are
recorded on the basis of notifications received. Maturities are recorded when due.

Liability adequacy tests

At each financial reporting date, liability adequacy tests are performed to ensure the adequacy
of the contract liabilities net of reinsurance assets. In performing these tests, current best
estimates of future contractual cash flows and claims handling and administration expenses, as
well as investment income from assets backing such liabilities are used. Any deficiency is
immediately recognized in the profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks which are stated at face value. Cash equivalents are
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Receivables
Receivables are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method (EIR), less provision for impairment.

Short-term investments
Short-term investments are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Other current assets
Prepayments represent expenses not yet incurred but already paid in cash. Prepayments are
initially recorded as assets and measured at the amount of cash paid. Subsequently, these are
charged to statement of comprehensive income as they are consumed in operations or expire with
the passage of time.

Prepayments are classified in the statement of financial position as current assets when the cost

of goods or services related to the prepayment are expected to be incurred within one year or

the Association’s normal operating cycle, whichever is longer. Othervwse prepayments are
) clas<1f1ed as. noncurrent assets.

Other current assets are recogmzed when the Assocratlon expects to receive future economic
benefit from them and the amount can be measured reliably. Other assets are classified in the
statement of financial position as current assets when the cost of goods or services related to the
assets are expected to be incurred within one year or the Association’s normal operating cycle,
whichever is longer. Otherwise, other assets-are classified as noncurrent assets.
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Investment properties

Investment property consists of property that is being constructed for future use as investment
property. Investment property, except for land, is measured at cost including transaction costs
less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment in value. The carrying amount
includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property at the time the cost is
incurred, if the recognition criteria are met, and excludes the costs of day-to-day servicing of an
investment property. Land is stated at cost less any impairment in value.

Depreciation of building, which commences when the assets are available for their intended use,
is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of 20 to 40 years.

The useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each
reporting date.

Investment property is derecognized either when it has been disposed of or when it is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss
on the retirement and disposal of investment property is recognized in the statements of income
in the period of retirement and disposal.

Transfers are made to investment property when, and only when, there is a change in use,
evidenced by ending of owner-occupation or commencement of an operating lease to another
party. Transfers are made from investment property when, and only when, there is a change in
use, evidenced by commencement of the owner-occupation or commencement of development
with a view to sell.

For a transfer from investment property to owner-occupied property or inventories, the cost of
property for subsequent accounting is its carrying amount at the date of change in use. If the
property occupied by the Association as an owner-occupied property becomes an investment
property, the Association accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under
property and equipment up to the date of change in use.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment in value. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the property and equipment
at the time the cost is incurred, if the recognition criteria are met, and excludes the costs of day-
to-day servicing.

The initial cost of property and equipment comprises its construction cost or purchase price,
including import duties, taxes and any directly attributable costs in bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use. Cost also includes any related asset
retirement obligation (ARQ). Expenditures incurred after the asset has been put into operation,
such as repairs, maintenance and overhaul costs, are normally recognized as expense in the period
the costs are incurred. Major repairs are capitalized as part of property and equipment only when
_it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the items will flow to the Association
and the cost of the items can be measured reliably.

Depreciation, which commences when the assets are available for their intended use, is computed
using the straight-tine method over the following estimated useful lives of the assets:

. Number.of Years
Office furniture and fixtures ‘ 5 years

Transportation equipment . Syears

Computer equipment 3 years
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The remaining useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted periodically, if
appropriate, to ensure that such periods and method of depreciation are consistent with the
expected pattern of economic benefits from the items of property and equipment.

The carrying amounts of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in use.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized when either it has been disposed of or when
it is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Any gain or loss arising from the retirement and disposal of an item of property and
equipment (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is recognized in the statements of income in the period of retirement and
disposal.

Computer software
Computer software that are not an integral part of the hardware are classified as intangible

assets.

Subsequent expenditure on software assets is capitalized only when it increases the future
economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates.

All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.

Software asset is amortized on a straight line basis in profit or loss over its estimated useful life,
from the date on which it is available for use. The estimated useful life of software assets for the
current and comparative periods range from three to five years.

Amortization methods, useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if
appropriate.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Trademarks and other
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually
or at the cash-generating unit level. If any such indication exists, and if the carrying amount
exceeds the estimated recoverable amount, the assets or cash-generating units are written down
to their recoverable amounts. The recoverable amount of the asset is the greater of fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. The fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from
the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, less
costs of disposal. Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to
arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash
" inflows, the recoverable amount is detérmined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. Impairment .tosses are recognized in the statements of mcome in those expense
,categones cons1stent with the funcflon of the lmpalred asset.
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An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists,
-the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since
the last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is
increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized
for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statements of income. After such a
reversal, the depreciation charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset’s revised
carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

Fair value measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either: (a) in the principal market for the asset or liability; or
(b) in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or most advantageous market must be accessible to the Association.

The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best
economic interest.

The Association uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

= Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or liabilities;

= Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

= Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Association determines whether transfers have occurred between leveis in the hierarchy by re-
assessing the categorization at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Association has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level
of the fair value hierarchy. '

Trade and other payables 3 g . . %
Trade and other payables are obligaticns to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in
the ordinary course of business from suppliers. These are -classified as current liabilities if
" payment is due within one year or less (or within-the normal operating cycle of the business
whichever is longer); otherwise, they are presented as noncurrent liabilities. ' y
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Accrued expenses are liabilities to pay for goods or services that have been received or supplied
but have not been paid, invoiced or formally agreed with supplier, including amounts due. to
employees. It is necessary to estimate the amount or timing of accruals, however, the uncertainty
is generally much less than for provisions. '

Liability for incurred policy benefit
A liability for incurred policy benefits relating to life insurance contracts in force is accrued when
premium revenue is recognized.

The Association’s aggregate reserve for life policies, policy and contract claims payable,
applicant’s deposit and other funds and premium deposit fund are computed annually based on
the approved valuation method by the Insurance Commission (IC) and certified to by an
independent actuary.

Liability adequacy test

The Association assesses at each reporting date whether its recognized insurance liabilities are
adequate, using the current estimates of future cash flows under its insurance contracts. If that
assessment shows that the carrying amount of its insurance liabilities is inadequate in the light of
the estimated future cash flows, the entire deficiency shall be recognized in profit or loss.

The liability is derecognized when the contract expires, is discharged or is cancelled.

Basic contingent benefit reserves

Basic contingent benefit reserves represent the total actuarial reserve set-up by the Association
pertaining to the basic life benefit that is in force as at the end of the accounting period. It refers
to the amount of liability which the Association establishes for a certificate to meet the
contractual obligation as it falls due.

Liability on individual equity value

Upon termination of membership, a member who has been with the Association at least three (3)
full years shall be entitled to an equity value equivalent to at least fifty percent (50%) of the total
weekly contributions collected from him.

The Association’s Board of Trustees shall set up each year sufficient reserves for the payment of
claims and other obligations in accordance with actuarial procedures approved by the Insurance
Commission. If the reserves become impaired, the Board of Trustees shall require all members’
equitable proportion of such indebtedness against the members and draw interest not exceeding
five percent (5%) per annum compounded annually.

Withdrawal from the funds of the Association, whether by check or any other instruments, is
signed by at least two (2) persons designated by the unanimous vote of the Association’s Board of
Trustees.

Optional benefit reserve

Optional benefit reserve represents the total actuariat reserve set up by the Association pertaining
to the policies under optional benefit that is in force as at the end of the accountmg period. It
refers to the amount of liabitity which the Association estabhshes for an optionatl pohcy te: meet
the contractual obligation as'it fails due.’ <

Claims pavable on basic cor*tmger\t benefit

Claims payable on basic contingent benefit represents the sum of the 1nd1v1dual claims on'
membership certificates that are due and have already been approved for payment but, for one
reason or another, have not actually been paid. This includes check already lssued to beneficiaries
but not yet released as of the end of the financial reporting period.
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Retirement benefit costs

The liability or asset recognized in the statement of financial position in respect of defined benefit
pension. plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting
period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually
using projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of government
bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have
terms to maturity approximating to the terms of all related pension obligations.

Retirement benefit costs comprise the following:

e Service cost
« Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset
s« Remeasurements of net defined benefit liability or asset

Service costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses on
non-routine settlements are recognized as expense in profit or loss. Past service costs are
recognized when plan amendment or curtailment occurs. These amounts are calculated
periodically by independent qualified actuaries.

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is the change during the period in the net
defined benefit liability or asset that arises from the passage of time which is determined by
applying the discount rate based on government bonds to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is recognized as expense or income in
profit or loss.

Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains or losses arising from experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income
in the period in which they arise. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods.

Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognized when: (a) the Association has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event; (b) it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and (c) a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognized as finance cost. When the Association expects a provision or loss to be reimbursed,
the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset only when the reimbursement is virtually
certain and its amount is estimable. The expense relating to any provision is charged against profit
or loss, net of any reimbursement.

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. These are disclosed in the

notes to financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying

economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements

. but are disclosed in the notes to financial statements when an inflow. of economic benefits is,
-probable. o E

Fund batance ) : . - .

Fund balance refers to the residual interest in the assets of the Association after deducting all its
liabilities. This represents the accumulated earnings of the Association reduced by whatever
losses the Association may incur during a certain.accounting period.
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Restricted fund balance

‘Restricted fund balance are those earnings earmarked and separated by the Association for
specific purpose as approved by the BOT.

Unrestricted fund balance

Unrestricted fund balance include all current and prior period results of operations as disclosed
in the statements of changes in fund balance.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contract with customers is recognized when the performance obligation in the
contract has been satisfied, either at a point in time or over time. Revenue is recognized over
time if one of the following criteria is met: (a) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits as the Association perform its obligations; (b) the Association’s performance creates
or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or (c) the
Association’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Association and
the Association has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.
Otherwise, revenue is recognized at a point in time.

The Association also assesses its revenue arrangements to determine if it is acting as a principal
or as an agent. The Association has assessed that it acts as a principal in all of its revenue sources.

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized.

Interest from bank deposit accounts is recognized as the interest is earned. Interest income is
presented net of tax unless final tax is deemed significant.

Contribution and fees

Members are charged a one-time fifty pesos (P50) application fee for Kasagana-Ka Development
Center, Inc. (KDCl) members and one hundred pesos (RP100) for associate members in order to
cover the expenses incurred in processing their application. This fee is neither refundable nor
included in determining the member’s accumulated and refundable contributions. Membership
fees are recognized upon the admission of a qualified member to the Association.

Members are charged twenty pesos (P20) contribution per week for the payment of death and
total disability of a member, and death of any member’s legal spouse, or any of the members’
legitimate and/or legally adopted children in accordance with the Association’s table of Life
Insurance Benefits. Twenty percent (20%) of the weekly contribution from its members is
deducted as General Administrative Funds and any balance is used for payment of mutual
benefits. '

The contribution may be adjusted by the Board of Trustees as may be necessary to maintain the
funds of the Association at a level adequate to meet its benefit obligations or commitments under
the pain.

Interest income”
For all financial instruments mieasured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the
EIR which is the rate that exactly discounted the-estimated future cash payments or receipts over

the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset or liability.
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Dividend income

Income from equity investments is reCognized when received.
Other income

Income from other sources is recognized when earned.

Expense recognition

Expenses are recognized in profit or loss when decrease in future economic benefit related to a
decrease in an asset or an increase in a liability has arisen that can be measured reliably. Expenses
are recognized in profit or loss on the basis of a direct association between the costs incurred and
the earning of specific items of income; on the basis of systematic and rational allocation
procedures when economic benefits are expected to arise over several accounting periods and
the association with income can only be broadly or indirectly determined; or immediately when
an expenditure produces no future economic benefits or when, and to the extent that, future
economic benefits do not qualify, or cease to qualify, for recognition in the statement of financial
position as an asset.

Income taxes

The Association is exempted from income tax under Section 30 (c) of the National Internal
Revenue Code as a non-stock association organized and operated exclusively for charitable and
cultural purposes no part of its net income or asset shall belong to or inure to the benefit of any
member, organizer, officer or any specific person. Interest earned from the placement of
Association funds are, however, subject to final tax. The interest income shown in the financial
statement is net of final tax.

Leases

At the inception of a contract, the Association assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease.
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Association assesses whether:

- the contract involves an identified asset - this may be specified explicitly or implicitly,
and should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a
physically distinct asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset
is not identified;

- the Association has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use
of the asset throughout the period of use; and

- the Association has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Association when it has
the decision-making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose
the asset is used. The Association has the right to direct the use of the asset of either:

- the Association has the right to operate the asset; or
- the Association designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what
purpose it will be used.

This policy is applied to contracts entered into, or changed, on or aﬁ:er January 1, 2019.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Association applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to its short-term leases- of machinery and.equipment (i.e., those leases
that have a iease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of
office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the-lease term.
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Related parties
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control

the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and
operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common
control or common significant influence. Related parties may be individual or corporate entities.
The key management personnel of the Association and post-employment benefit plans for the
benefit of the Association’s employees are also considered to be related parties.

Events after the statement of financial position date

Post year-end events up to the date the financial statements are authorized for issue by the BOD
that provide additional information about the Association’s financial position at the financial
reporting date (adjusting events) are recognized in the financial statements when material. Post
year-end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to financial statements
when material.

Use of Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies
and the amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses reported in the financial statements
at the reporting date. However, uncertainty about these judgments, estimates and assumptions
could result in an outcome that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of
the affected asset or liability in the future.

Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. Revisions are recognized in the period in which the judgments and estimates
are revised and in any future period affected.

Judgments
In the process of applying the accounting policies, the Association has made the following

judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which have an effect on the amounts
recognized in the financial statements:

Operating lease - Association as a lessee. The Association has entered into a contract of lease for
its office space and warehouse it occupies. The Association has determined that all the significant
risks and rewards of ownership on these properties are retained by the lessor (Note 21).

Classifying financial instruments. The Association exercises judgments in classifying a financial
instrument, or its component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a financial liability,
or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement and the
definitions of a financial asset or liability. The substance of a financial instrument, rather than
its legal form, governs its classification in the statements of financial position.

Provisions and contingencies. The Association, in the ordinary course of business, sets up
appropriate provisions for its present legal or constructive obligations, if any, in accordance with
its policies on provisions and contingencies. In recognizing and measuring provisions; management
takes nsks and uncertainties into account.

As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, management assessed that no provisions nor contingencies
are necessary to be recognized or disclosed, respectively, in the financial statements.
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Estimates and assumptions

The key estimates and assumptions used in the financial statements are based upon-the
Association’s evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as at the date of the financial
statements. Actual results could differ from such estimates.

Fair value measurements. A number of the Association’s accounting policies and disclosures
require the measurement of fair values for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Association has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair
values. This includes a valuation team that has the overall responsibility for overseeing all
significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values. The valuation team regularly
reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information is
used to measure fair values, then the valuation team assesses the evidence obtained to support
the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of PFRS, including the level in the fair
value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

The Association uses market observable data when measuring the fair value of an asset or liability.
Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used
in the valuation techniques.

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability can be categorized in different
levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety
in the same level of the fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the entire measurement.

The Association recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Impairment of non-financial assets. The Association assesses impairment on assets whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable. The factors that the Association considers important which could trigger an
impairment review include the following:

o significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating
results;

o significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for overall
business; and

e significant negative industry or economic trends.

The Association recognizes an impairment loss whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is computed using the value in use approach.
Recoverable amounts are estimated for individual assets or, if not possible, for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

The carrying values of property and equipment and computer software are disclosed in
Notes 11 and 12.

Estimating useful tives of property and equipment, investment properties and intangible assets.
The Association estimates the useful lives of its property and equipment,.investment properties
and software cost based on the period over which these properties are expected to be available
for use. The. estimated useful lives of the properties are reviewed at least annually and are
updated if expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear and
technical or commercial obsolescence on the use of these properties. It is possible that future

" results of operations could be materially affected by changes in estimates brought about by -
changes in factors mentioned above. The estimated useful lives are disclosed in Note 3 to the
financial statements.
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Valuation of retirement benefits liability. The cost of defined benefit pension plan as well as the
present value of the pension obligation was determined using actuarial valuations. The actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions. These include the determination of the discount
rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the complexity
of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and its long-term nature, defined benefit obligations
are highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date. Further details on the retirement liability are provided in Note 18 to the financial
statements.

As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, the net retirement liability amounted to P2,048,923 and
R199,331, respectively (Note 18).

Valuation of aggregate reserves. The cost of aggregate reserves was determined using actuarial
valuations. The actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions. These include the
determination of the unearned premium reserves, accumulated value of members equity value,
accumulated value plus interest of reserve fund and mortality rates. Due to the complexity of the
valuation, the underlying assumptions and its long-term nature, aggregate reserves are highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.
Further details on the aggregate reserves are provided in Note 14 to the financial statements.

As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, the aggregate reserves amounted to P144,675,461 and
R133,754,770, respectively (Note 14).

Cash and Cash Equivalents

This account consists of:

2019 2018
Cash on hand R12,000 R7,000
Cash in banks 14,350,015 25,838,466
Cash equivalents 9,393,497 13,722,196

R23,755,512 R39,567,662

Cash and cash equivalents earn interest at the prevailing bank deposit rates. Interest earned in
2019 and 2018 amounted to R76,959 and P185,527, respectively.

Receivables

This account consists of:

Note 2019 2018

Unremitted members’ contribution dues and fees
Related party 17 R1,959,526 8,280,052
Third party ; - 689,014

Unremitted premiums

Related party . ’ - 17 1,110,202 1,739,564
Third party ) : E sy S 97,765
Accrued interest income ' . . - 348,510 . 561,964
Due from officers and employee : ' 41,348 74,778
" Receivable KDCI Inc. 3 0 - : - : — © 52,798
Advances to employees - : 25,815 10,001
Other receivables . 822,260 - 267,190
) ‘ R4,307,661 R11,773,126
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Unremitted members’ contributions, dues and fees represents amount collected by partner
individual/ institutions on membership certificates but not yet remitted as at the end of the .
financial reporting period. C

Unremitted premium represents gross premiums collected by partner individuals/institutions on
all optional policies but not yet remitted as at the end of the financial reporting period.

Other receivables represent claims from third party insurance for fire assistance and accidental
death claims by the members.

Based on management’s evaluation, the Association’s receivables are fully collectible, thus, no
allowance for impairment is necessary as at December 31, 2019 and 2018.

Short-Term Investment

Short-term investment pertains to treasury bill with a maturity date that is less than twelve
months after reporting period amounting to R5,000,000 and P6,051,351 in 2019 and 2018,
respectively.

Financial Assets at FVOCI

This account consists of:

2019
No. of
Shares Acquisition Cost Fair Value
Petron preferred shares series 3B 18,000 B8,000,000 R8,440,000
Ayala Corp Class B Preferred Shares 10,000 5,000,000 5,050,000
Save and learned fixed income fund 2,348,914 5,000,000 5,540,853
BPI unit investment 195,524 20,000,000 20,987,510
R38,000,000 R40,018,363
2018
No. of
Shares Acquisition Cost Fair Value
Petron preferred shares series 2A 8,000 P8,000,000 R7,840,000
Save and learned fixed income fund 2,348,914 5,000,000 5,188,751
BPI unit investment 50,040 5,000,000 4,971,978
P18,000,000 P18,000,729

In 2018, the Asscciation made a redemption of its investment in Sun life prosperity GS fund with
a net investment value amounting to B1,871,479, which resulted to a realized loss amounting to
R128,521. ' : ‘

The Association also acquired additional investments amounting to F20,000,000.
The- Association recognized an unrealized gain amcunﬁng to R2,017,634 -and unrealized loss

amounting” to P590,011 in the statements of comprehensive income in 2019 and 2018,
respectively.
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The movements in the fair value of financial assets at FVOCI follow:

2019 2018
Balance, January 1 R18,000,729 R15,590,740
Additions 20,000,000 5,000,000
Redemption - (2,000,000)
Unrealized gain (loss) 2,017,634 (590,011)
Balance, December 31 R40,018,363 R18,000,729

Dividend income earned amounted to P789,532 and R504,000 in 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Interest earned in 2019 and 2018 amounted to 221,007 and P289,084, respectively.

9. Investments in Debt Securities
The account consists of:
2019 2018
Government security PR66,178,366 R66,178,366
Corporate bond 18,000,000 20,500,000
84,178,366 P86,678,366
Interest earned in 2019 and 2018 amounted to R3,770,740 and P3,894,321, respectively. Interest
rates on these investments range from 3.25% to 8.125%.
Based on management’s assessment, there is no indication of impairment in investments in debt
securities in 2019 and 2018.
10. Investment Properties

The details of and movements in this account are presented below:

2019
Construction in
Land progress Total
Cost
At January 1 R16,267,097 R27,795,179 R44,062,276
Additions — 14,889,598 14,889,598
P16,267,097 R42,757,577 P58,951,874
2018
. Construction in *
Land progress Total
Cost v v ‘ _ : :
At January 1 - . R16,267,097 R1,596,571 = .R17,863,668
Additions - ‘ - - 26,198,608 26,198,608
R16,267,097 . P27,795,179 R44,062,276

The fair market value of land amduhted to 23,320,000 and P27,972,083 in 2019 and 2018,
respectively. This is classified under Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.
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11. Property and Equipment, Net

The details of and movements in this account are presentéd below:

Office
Transportation = Computer furniture
Note Building equipment equipment _and fixtures Total
Cost
At December 31, 2017 RP— P912,622 P427,845 P422,726  P1,763,193
Additions - 1,030,000 184,900 23,996 1,238,896
Retirement = - (79,000) (12,015) (91,015)
At December 31, 2018 - 1,942,622 533,745 434,707 2,911,074
Additions 2,624,249 - 1,188,097 1,102,654 4,915,000
Retirement - — (136,000) (70,700) (206,700)
At December 31, 2019 2,624,249 1,942,622 1,585,842 1,466,661 7,619,374
Accumulated
depreciation
At December 31, 2017 - 872,627 226,844 379,596 1,479,067
Depreciation 20 - 121,868 144,005 24,473 290,346
Retirement - - (79,000) (12,015) (91,015)
At December 31, 2018 - 994,495 291,849 392,054 1,678,398
Depreciation 20 26,242 230,958 329,847 90,846 677,893
Retirement — — (136,000) (70,700) (206,700)
At December 31, 2019 26,242 1,225,453 485,696 412,200 2,149,591
Net book value
At December 31, 2019 PR2,598,007 R717,169 P1,100,146 PR1,054,461 PR5,469,783
At December 31, 2018 R— R948,127 P241,896 P42,653  P1,232,676

There are neither restrictions on the title on the Association's property and equipment nor any of
them are pledged as security for any of its liabilities.

The cost of fully depreciated assets still being used in the operation of the Association amounted
to P1,156,743 and R1,175,493 as at December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Based on management’s assessment, there is no indication of impairment and the carrying amount
of property and equipment can be recovered through continuous use in operations.
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12. Computer Software, Net

The details of and movements in this account are presented below:

Cost

December 31, 2017 R1,331,815
Additions =
December 31, 2018 1,331,815
Additions =
December 31, 2019 1,331,815
Accumulated amortization

December 31, 2017 122,083
Amortization (Note 20) 122,083
December 31, 2018 244,166
Amortization (Note 20) 133,176
December 31, 2019 377,342
Net book value

December 31, 2019 R954,473
December 31, 2018 P1,087,649

Management believes that there is no indication of impairment loss on its computer software in
2019 and 2018.

13."Trade and Other Payables

This account consists of:

2019 2018

Accounts payable R931,616 R370,192
Accrued expenses 281,635 268,224
Government dues 101,587 60,298
R1,314,838 P698,714

Accounts payable pertains to collection fees.

Accrued expenses pertain to expenses incurred but not yet paid such as legal and professional
fees, and operating cost incurred by the Association.

Government dues represent contributions of employees that will be remitted to various
government agencies such as SSS, Philhealth and Pag-ibig. It also includes taxes withheld from

~ salaries of employees and income payment to suppliers, which will be remitted in the subsequent
month. . .
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14.

Aggregate Reserves

This account consists of:

2019 2018
Liability on individual equity value P89,212,927 R83,073,905
Aggregate reserve for trust liability Reserved Funds (RF) 52,822,933 49,197,124
Optional benefit reserve 2,215,061 1,111,216
Basic contingent benefit reserve 424,540 372,525
RP144,675,461 P133,754,770
2019 2018
Breakdown:
Current portion
Liability on individual equity value R10,536,399 R5,562,364
Aggregate reserve for trust liability - RF 8,628,054 7,026,181
Noncurrent portion
Liability on individual equity value 78,676,528 77,511,541
Aggregate reserve for trust liability - RF 44,194,879 42,170,943

Liability on individual equity value represents the total amount of obligations set up by the
Association on membership certificates pertaining to 50% equity value, as required under the
Insurance Code, and any incremental amount declared by the Association.

Aggregate reserve for trust liability is weekly contribution of five pesos (R5), which shall be
credited to the fund for the account of the member. The calculations of the aggregate reserves
are based on reasonable actuarial assumptions and are in accordance with generally accepted
actuarial principles.

15. Claims Payable on Basic Contingent Benefit

The account consists of incurred but not paid claims amounting to P580,382 and R502,499 in 2019
and 2018, respectively.

16. Fund Balance

Fund balance refers to the residual interest in the assets of the Association after deducting all its
liabilities. This represents the accumulated earnings of the Mutual Benefit Association (MBA)
reduced by whatever losses the Association may incur during a certain accounting period.

Restricted Unrestricted
fund balance fund baiance Total
Balance at December 31, 2017 R35,111,526 R35,368,453 R70,479,979
Movement during the year. 10,324,348 (6,785,841) 3,538,507
Balance at December 31, 2018 45,435,874 28,582,612 74,018,486
. Movement during the year ; (3,203,754). 3,705,945 502,191
Balance at December 31, 2019 P42;232;120 P32,288,557 R74,520,677
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Restricted fund is composed of guaranty fund, benefits in kind and other relevant services,
enhancement of equity value fund, capacity building, continuing member’s education, education
and training fund, hospital assistance fund, research and development fund and computer
software maintenance. Education and training fund refers to the amount allocated by the
Association for education and training of its members, officers and staff. Education and training
fund includes the amount of payment to KDCI that represents collection fees.

The restricted fund of the Association is composed of the following:

2019 2018
Guaranty fund P26,847,995 R24,265,216
Benefits in kind and other relevant services 7,967,679 8,610,136
Enhancement of equity value 2,256,930 4,446,481
Capacity building fund 1,502,189 3,273,132
Continuing member’s education fund 1,757,753 3,056,884
Hospital assistance fund & other member’s benefit 839,925 911,776
Research and development 389,622 471,016
Software maintenance 670,027 401,233

R42,232,120 P45,435,874

A MBA shall only maintain free and unassigned surplus of not more than twenty percent (20%) of
its total liabilities as verified by the Commissioner. Any amount in excess shall be returned to the
members by way of dividends, enhancing the equity value or providing benefits in kind and other
relevant services. In addition, subject to the approval of the Commissioner, a MBA may allocate
a portion for capacity building and research and development such as developing new products
and services, upgrading and improving operating system and equipment and continuing member
education.

As at and for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Association’s excess unrestricted
fund balance from twenty percent (20%) of liabilities are as follows:

2019 2018

Unrestricted fund balance PR32,289,287 P28,582,612

Total liabilities 148,619,604 135,155,314

20% of liabilities 29,723,921 27,031,063
Excess of unrestricted fund balance from

20% of liabilities P2,565,366 P1,551,549

Decrease in fund balance for the consumption of restricted fund of the Association is composed
of the following:

. Wi 2019 2018
Benefits in kind and other relevant services P2,224,661 P2,314,208
Capacity building fund 1,305,671 692,139
Continuing member’s education fund . 1,241,098 . . .211,864
Equity Value Enhancement ‘ © 893,070 -
Other Member’s Benefits . h 71,850 S =
Research'and development - =~ | d 50,185 . 60,192

- Education and training fund - ) ’ A —_ 689,784
Software maintenance ; B - 79,976
R5,786,535 R4,048,163
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17. Related Party Transactions

In the normal course of its business, the Association transacts with its related parties. These
principally consist of collection of membership and premium contribution and non-interest
bearing advances for certain expenses. Other transactions are based on terms agreed to by the
parties.

Kabuhayan sa Ganap na Kasarinlan Credit & Savings Cooperative (KCOOP) is a cooperative duly
registered under the Cooperative Development Authority in February 2016. It is the fourth
organization under the Kasagana-Ka Synergizing Organizations. Since the Association was
established primarily to answer the member’s need for a viable microinsurance program,
members of the Association are also members of KCOOP. The Association continues to take
advantage of KCOOP’s infrastructure to engage its growing membership and collect premium

payments.
Nature of the
Name of related party Relationship related party transaction
Kabuhayan sa Ganap Na Kasarinlan Credit and Funds Assigned for Member's Benefits
Savings Cooperative (KCOOP) KCOOP partner (Fund Balance Account)

The following summarizes the Association’s related party transactions:

2019
Additions Payment /
2018 during the year Collections 2019
Unremitted Contribution Dues and
Fees P8,280,052 R32,669,089 (R38,989,615) R1,959,526
Unremitted Premiums 1,739,564 9,001,513 (9,630,875) 1,110,202
2018
Additions Payment /
2017  during the year Collections 2018
Unremitted Contribution Dues and
Fees R3,176,595 P26,543,104 (R21,439,647) P8,280,052
Unremitted Premiums 503,845 7,216,513 (5,980,794) 1,739,564

Details of the Association’s related party transactions follow:

a. The Association will collect from KCOOP members’ contributions on member certificates
that will be remitted at the end of the financial reporting period.

b. The Association will collect from KCOOP gross premiums on all optional policies that will
be remitted at the end of the financial reporting period.

The outstanding balances with related parties as at December 31 are as follows:

Nature of ;
consideration Details of
to be provided guarantees

: Terms and upon given or Impairment
__ Note 2019 2018 conditions  Security.. settlement  received loss
Unremitted X h
" Contribution S Y e o ' )
) Dues and Fees - 6 PR1,959,526 P8,280,052 Demandable Unsecured Cash. . None None
Unremitted '

Premiums ) 6 1,110,202 1,739,564 Demandabie Unsecured Cash None None
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18. Retirement Benefit Obligation, Net

The Association has a noncontributory, defined benefit plan covering all its officers and regular

" employees. Retirement benefits expense recognized in the statement of comprehensive income
is computed based on provision of PAS 19 (Amended). The principal actuarial assumptions used to
determine the funding of the trust fund is accrued benefit actuarial cost method which take into
account the factors of investment, mortality, disability, and salary projection rates.

The amounts recognized in the statements of financial position are as follows:

2019 2018
Present value of the obligation R3,217,474 P1,296,208
Fair value of plan assets (1,168,551) (1,096,877)
Defined benefit obligation P2,048,923 PR199,331

The retirement benefit cost recognized in the statements of comprehensive income as follows:

Note 2019 2018
Current service cost R183,973 R199,477
Interest cost, net 15,224 25,888
20 R199,197 R225,365
a. Reconciliation of defined benefit obligation
The movement in the defined benefit obligation is as follows:
2019 2018
Present value of the obligation at January 1 P1,296,208 R1,302,990
Current service cost 183,973 199,477
Interest cost 99,002 63,769
Remeasurements in other comprehensive income:
Loss (gain) in defined benefit obligation from changes in
financial assumptions 1,293,777 (539,730)
Loss (gain) in defined benefit obligation due to
experience 344,514 269,702
1,921,266 (6,782)
Present value of the obligation at December 31 R3,217,474 R1,296,208
Fair value of plan assets at January 1 1,096,877 479,746
Contributions paid B— R588,532
Expected return _ 83,778 37,881
Remeasurements in other comprehensive income:
Gain (loss) in defined benefit obligation due to £
experience (12,104) (9,282)
71,674 617,131
Fair value of plan assets at December 31 P1,168;551 R1,096,877
resent vaiue of the obh’gaﬁon, net at December 31 B2,048,923 P1.99,331' '
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b. Remeasurements in other comprehensive income

Remeasurements in other comprehensive income represent actuarial gains and losses as shown
below:

2019 2018
(R1,650,395) R260,746

Actuarial gain (loss) recognized, net

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

The principal assumptions used in determining pension liability of the Association are shown

below:

2019 2018
Discount rate 4.89% 7.64%
Expected rate of salary increases 5% 5%

19. Revenue

This account consists of:

2019 2018
Gross member's contribution R37,145,309 R35,916,179
Gross premium 14,510,315 9,493,6‘22!"‘“;; . e,
Membership fees 1,346,100 1,156,090 =
Miscellaneous income 465,539 643,204
Other income 132,481 —

R53,599,744 P47,209,170

Miscellaneous income is composed of other income from K-Kalinga and income other than

contribution, premiums and membership fees.

Breakdown of revenue recognized at a point in time and over a period of time follow:

2019 2018

A point in time R51,601,594 P45,135,035
Over a period of time 1,998,150 2,074,135
R53,599,744 P47,209,170
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20. Operating Expenses

This account consists of:

Note 2019 2018

Salaries, wages and benefits R5,361,930 P3,760,341
Office supplies 868,347 587,968
Meals 753,436 569,349
Depreciation 11 677,893 290,346
Representation and entertainment 618,586 781,111
Transportation and travel allowance 531,900 807,405
Technical and professional fees 409,802 438,902
Meeting and conferences 232,483 187,622
Rental 21 232,404 441,478
Repairs and maintenance 215,278 81,183
Retirement benefit cost 18 199,197 225,365
Utilities 188,941 139,380
Communication expense 171,485 =
Taxes, licenses and fees 167,515 135,536
Research and development 150,558 242,020
Amortization 12 133,176 122,083
MBA Dues 71,084 -
Service fee 63,802 =
Dues and subscription 52,075 31,702
Gasoline expense 42,631 -
Insurance 34,673 63,537
Reinsurance premium 34,000 47,534
Building supplies 31,627 =
Marketing, advertising and promotlons 20,400 —
Annual general assembly 18,514 107,232
Medicine 17,546 4,222
Bank and other charges 9,641 9,164
Professional and technical development - 264,465
Investment Management Fees - 12,000
Donations and contributions - 5,000
Miscellaneous 22,786 37,463
R11,331,710 P9,392,408

21. Lease Agreement

The Association entered into two operating lease agreements for the lease of Units 501 and 504
for the period of two (2) years from February 1, 2016 to January 31, 2018 and from May 1, 2016
to April 30, 2018, respectively. Total monthly rentals of P30,315 for both units shall be paid on
the first year of the lease agreement and shall increase to P33,346 on the second year.

in 2018, the Assocxanon entered into.a new lease of agreement for the tease of Umts 501. and 504
for the period of one (1) year from February 1, 2018 to January 31, 2019 and from May 1, 2018 to
Aprit 30, 2019, respectively. Total monthly rentais of R34,006 for both umts shall be pa‘d dunng o
the period of the lease agreement.. -

Relative to the lease agreements, the Association paid security depos1t amountmg to
. P2,079 and P102,020 as at December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

R
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Rent expense recognized in 2019 and 2018 amounted to R232,404 and R441,478, respectively
(Note 20). .

The future lease payments under the operating lease will be as follows:

2019 2018

Not later than one year R— P94,446
Later than one year but not later than five years - —
R— P94,446

22.

Income Tax Exemption

The Association is exempted from income tax under Section 30 (c) of the National Internal
Revenue Code as a non-stock association organized and operated exclusively for charitable and
cultural purposes and no part of its net income or asset shall belong to or inure to the benefit of
any member, organizer, officer or any specific person. Interest earned from the placement of
Association funds are, however, subject to final tax. The interest income shown in the financial
statement is net of final tax.

23i

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The main risks arising from the Association’s financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk
and price risk. There is no change in the financial risk management objectives and policies of the
Association.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation
and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis with the result that the Association’s exposure to impairment is not significant.

Member credit risk is managed by managing and analyzing the credit risk for each new member
before standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. Outstanding receivables
are regularly monitored. The credit quality of the Association’s financial assets that are neither
past due nor impaired is considered to be good quality and expected to be collectible without
incurring any credit losses.

Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by ensuring that the Association’s deposit
arrangements are with reputable and financially sound counterparties.

AR

2019 ANNUAL REPORT m_



The Association’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of other counterparties, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts as follows: - o

2019

Note 2018
Cash and cash equivalents* 5 R23,743,512 R39,560,662
Receivables 6 4,307,661 11,773,126
Short term investment 7 5,000,000 6,051,351
Rental deposit 2,079 102,020
Other funds and deposits 328,757 246,867
Financial assets at FVOCI 8 40,018,363 18,000,729
Investments in debt securities 9 84,178,366 86,678,366
R157,578,738 R162,413,121

*Cash and cash equivalents exclude cash on hand amounting to R12,000 and R7,000 in 2019 and 2018,

respectively.

The following table provides an analysis of the age of the financial assets that are past due but
not impaired and those financial assets that are individually determined to be impaired as at the
end of the reporting period:

December 31, 2019

Neither
impaired nor
past due Past due but not yet impaired
91 to 120 More than
Total Current 1 to 60 days 61 to 90 days days 120 days Impaired
Financial assets at
amortized cost
Cash in banks R23,743,512 R23,743,512 R— R— R— R— B—
Receivables 4,307,661 4,307,661
Short term
investment 5,000,000 5,000,000 - - - - -
Rental deposit 2,079 2,079 — — - — —
Other funds and
deposits 328,757 328,757 - — - — -
Investments in
debt securities 84,178,366 84,178,366 - - — - -
Financial assets at
FVOCI 39,990,341 39,990,341 — - — - -
R157,550,716 R157,550,716 R— R— R— R— R—
December 31, 2018
Neither
impaired nor
past due Past due but not yet impaired
91 to 120 More than
Total Current  1to 60days 61 to 90 days days 120 days _Impaired
Financial assets at
amortized cost
Cash in banks R39,560,662  R39,560,662 R— R— R— R— R—
Receivables 11,773,126 7,421,592 4,315,977 35,557 - - -
Short term .
investment 6,051,351 6,051,351 - - - - -
Rental deposit 102,020 102,020 = - ) - - -
‘Other funds and P ¢
deposits " 246,867 246,867 - - - = - =
Investments in : ; .
debt securities 86,678,266 86,678,365 - - - - -
Financial assets at :
FvOCI 18,000,729 18,000,729 - - — - -
R162,413,121 -R158,061,587 R4,315,977 R35,557 P R— R—
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The credit quality of the Association’s financial assets is evaluated using internal credit rating.
Financial assets are considered as high grade if the counter parties are not expected to default
in settling their obligations, thus, credit risk exposure is minimal. These counter parties include
banks, related parties and members who pay on or before due date.

Credit quality per class of financial assets

The Association’s bases in grading its financial assets are as follows:

High grade - These are receivables which have a high probability of collection
(the counterparty has the apparent ability to satisfy its obligation and the security on the

receivables are readily enforceable).

Standard - These are receivables where collections are probable due to the reputation and the
financial ability of the counterparty to pay but have been outstanding for a certain pericd of time.

Substandard - These are receivables that can be collected provided the Association makes
persistent effort to collect them.

The table below shows the credit quality by class of financial assets (gross of allowance for credit
losses) of the Association based on their historical experience with the corresponding third parties
as of December 31, 2019 and 2018:

2019
Neither Past Due nor Impaired
Standard Substandard Past Due but
High Grade Grade Grade Unrated NotImpaired Impaired Total
Financial assets at
amortized cost
Cash and cash
equivalents R23,755,512 B— B— B— P— R— [PR23,755,512
Receivables 4,307,661 - = - - — 4,307,661
Short term
investment 5,000,000 - - - — - 5,000,000
Rental deposit 2,079 - - - — - 2,079
Other funds and
deposits 328,757 - - - - - 328,757
Investments in
debt securities 84,178,366 - - - - — 84,178,366
Financial assets at
FVOCI 39,990,341 - = — — — 39,990,341
R157,562,716 R— R— R— R— R— R157,562,716
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2018

Neither Past Due nor Impaired

Standard Substandard Past Due but
High Grade - Grade Grade Unrated Not Impaired Impaired Total
Financial assets at
amortized cost
Cash and cash
equivalents R39,560,662 R— R— R— R— R—  PB39,560,662
Receivables 7,421,592 - - - 4,351,534 - 11,773,126
Short term
investment 6,051,351 - - - - - 6,051,351
Rental deposit 102,020 - - - - - 102,020
Other funds and
deposits 246,867 - - - — - 246,867
Investments in
debt securities 86,678,366 - - - - - 86,678,366
Financial assets at
FVOCI 18,000,729 - — — — — 18,000,729
R158,061,587 R— R— R— R4,351,534 R— P162,413,121

Impairment assessment

Impairment losses are recognized based on the results of specific (individual) and collective
assessment of credit exposures. Impairment has taken place when there is a presence of known
difficulties in the payments of obligation by counterparties. This and other factors, either singly
or in tandem with other factors, constitute observable events or data that meet the definition of
objective evidence of impairment.

The Association applied specific (individual) assessment methodology in assessing and measuring
impairment.

Specific (individual) assessment

The Association determines the allowances appropriate for each individually significant loan on
an individual basis. Items considered when determining amounts of allowances include payment
and collection history, timing of expected cash flows and realizable value of collateral, if any.

The Association sets criteria for specific loan impairment testing and uses the discounted cash
flow method to compute for impairment loss. Accounts subjected to specific impairment and are
found to be impaired shall be excluded from the collective impairment computation.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Association wiil not be able to meet its financial obligations
as these fall due and lack of funding to finance its growth and capital expenditures and working
capital requirements.

The Association’s approach to manage its liquidity profile are to ensure that adequate funding is

available at all times; to meet commitments as these arise without incurring unnecessary costs;
and to be able to access funding when needed.
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2019 ANNUAL REPORT



The following summarizes the maturity profile of the Association’s non-derivative financial
liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

December 31, 2019

Less than 3to 12
Note  On demand 3 months months 1 to 5 years Total
Trade and
other payables* 13 P1,213,251 R— B— BR— P1,213,251
Liability on individual
equity value 14 10,536,399 - - - 10,536,399
Aggregate reserve for
trust liability 14 8,628,054 - - - 8,628,054
Basic contingent benefit
reserve 14 424,540 — — — 424,540
Optional benefit reserve 14 2,215,061 — - - 2,215,061
Claims payable on basic
contingent benefit 15 580,382 — - - 580,382
R23,597,687 R— R— R P23,597,687
*excluding government dues
December 31, 2018
Less than 3to 12
Note  On demand 3 months months 1 to 5 years Total
Trade and
other payables* 13 R638,416 R— P— P— P638,416
Liability on individual
equity value 14 5,562,364 - — — 5,562,364
Aggregate reserve for
trust liability 14 7,026,181 - - - 7,026,181
Basic contingent benefit
reserve 14 372,525 - - - 372,525
Optional benefit reserve 14 1,111,216 - - - 1,111,216
Claims payable on basic
contingent benefit 15 502,499 — — — 502,499
R15,213,201 P— P— P— P15,213,201

*excluding government dues

Capital risk management

The primary objective of the Association’s capital management is to ensure its ability to continue
as a going concern and that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order

to support its business and maximize shareholder value.

The Association’s BOT has the overall responsibility for monitoring of capital in proportion to risk.
Profiles for capital ratios are set in the light of changes in the Association’s external environment
and the risks underlying the Association’s business operations and industry.
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The Association monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-equity ratio, which is calculated as
total debt divided by total equity. Total debt is equivalent to total liabilities shown in the
statement of financial position. Total equity comprises all components of equity including share
capital and related earnings.

2019 2018
Debt R148,619,604 P135,155,314
Cash and cash equivalents (23,755,512) (39,567,662)
Net Debt 124,864,092 95,587,652
Equity 74,934,602 74,093,194
Net debt to equity ratio 1.67:1 1.29:1

There were no changes in the Association’s approach to capital management during the year.
Margin of Solvency (MOS)

The Association is required to maintain at all times an MOS for life insurance business of
R500,000 or P2.00 per thousand of the total amount of its insurance in force as of the preceding
calendar year on all policies, except term insurance, whichever is higher.

The MOS shall be the excess of the value of its admitted assets (as defined under the IC Code),
exclusive of its paid-up capital, over the amount of its liabilities, unearned premiums and
reinsurance reserves. As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Association’s MOS ratio based on its
calculations are 127% and 139.12%, respectively. The final amount of the MOS can be determined
only after the accounts of the Association have been examined by the IC specifically as to
admitted and non-admitted assets as defined under the same Code.

The surplus available for MOS for the Association follows:

2019 2018
Admitted assets R219,643,575 R207,305,157
Admitted liabilities 148,619,604 135,155,314
Net worth R71,023,971 R72,149,843

As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, the estimated non-admitted assets of the Association’s life
operations, as defined under the Code, which are included in the accompanying statements of
financial position follows:

2019 2018
Transportation equipment R717,167 R948,125
Other current assets 617,438 547,807
Receivables 889,423 - 404,766
Office furniture and fixture 732,130 42,653
Software and system development ; 954,473 1,087,649
Total non-admitted assets - . © B3,910,631 " B3,031,00C

If an insurance association fails to meet the minimum required MOS, the IC is. authorized to
suspend or revoke all certificates of authority granted to such companies, its officers and agents, -
and no new business shall be done by and for such Association until its authority is restored by
the IC. .
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Price risk

The Association’s price risk exposure at year-end relates to financial assets and liabilities whose
values will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices, principally, AFS financial assets. Such
investment securities are subject to the price risk due to changes in market values of instruments
arising either from factors specific to individual instruments or their issuers or factors affecting
all instruments traded in the market.

The Association’s investments are regulated under the pertinent provisions of Presidential Decree
No. 612, otherwise known as The Insurance Code of the Philippines. The Insurance Code generally
requires all insurance companies to obtain prior approval of the IC for any and all of their
investments. It further requires companies to submit to the IC a monthly report on all investments
made during the previous month. The IC reviews the investments and may suggest or require the
immediate sale or disposal of investments deemed too risky.

For equity investments, Section 200 of the Insurance Code further provides, among other things
that insurance companies may only invest in shares of Philippine corporations which have prior
three-year dividend payment record. Moreover, the same section limits exposure to any one
institution equal to 10% of an insurer’s total admitted assets.

The following table shows the equity impact of reasonable possible change in the fair values of
the Association’s investments as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 (all other variables held
constant), respectively.

2019 2018
Effect on Total Effect on Total
Comprehensive Comprehensive
Volatility Income Volatility Income
Financial assets at FVOCI %1 R22,774 1% R10,238
(%1) (22,775) (1%) (10,238)

Guaranty fund

As a mutual benefit association, the IC also requires the Association to possess a guaranty fund of
R5.00 million. This minimum amount shall be maintained at all times and it must be increased by
an amount equivalent to 5% of the Association’s gross premium collections until the guaranty fund
reaches 12.5% of the minimum paid up capital for domestic life insurance companies or
R125.00 million. As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Association has a total of
R26,847,995 and R24,265,216 representing guaranty fund which is deposited with the IC.

24,

Events After the Financial Reporting Date

On March 11, 2020 the World Health Organization declared the novel strain of coronavirus
(COVID-19) a global pandemic and recommended containment and mitigation measures
worldwide. As at December 31, 2019, the management assessed that the pandemic has no
material impact on its financial statements and that there is no significant doubt on the
Association’s ability to continue as going concern. The management continuously assesses the
length or severity of this pandemic, or the extent to which the disruption may materially impact
the financial position, results of operations, and cash flows onwards.
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25. Supplementary Information Required by the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR)
A. REVENUE REGULATIONS (RR) NO. 15-2010

On November 25, 2010, the BIR issued RR No. 15-2010 which prescribes additional procedural
and/or documentary requirements in connection with the preparation and submission of
financial statements accompanying the tax returns. Under the said RR, companies are
required to disclose, in addition to the disclosures mandated under PFRS and such other
standards and/or conventions that may heretofore be adopted, in the Notes to the Financial
Statements, information on taxes, duties and license fees paid or accrued during the taxable
year. In compliance with the requirements set forth by RR 15-2010 hereunder are the
information on taxes, duties and license fees paid or accrued during the taxable year.

1. The amount of VAT output tax declared during the year and the account title and
amount/s upon which the same was based

The Association’s revenues were not subject to Value Added Tax for years ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018.

2. The amount of VAT Input taxes claimed

The Association’s revenues were not subject to Value Added Tax for years ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018.

3. The landed costs of imports and the amount of custom duties and tariff fees paid or
accrued thereon

The Association did not have any importations in 2019 and 2018 that would require for the
payment of customs duties and tariff fees.

4. The amount of excise taxes classified per major product category

The Association did not have any transactions in 2019 and 2018 which are subject to excise
tax.

5. Documentary stamp tax (DST)

The Association did not have any transactions in 2019 and 2018 which are subject to
documentary stamp tax.

6. Taxes and licenses

Duties and taxes R117,655
Business Permit 28,960
Others 20,900

R167,515
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7. Withholding taxes

The amount of withholding taxes paid/accrued for the year amounted to:

a. Withholding tax - Compensation P242,618
b. Withholding tax - Expanded 480,928
B723,546

8. Periods covered and amounts of deficiency tax assessments, whether protested or not
The Association has not yet received a final assessment notice from the Regional Office for

the taxable year December 31, 2016 for deficiency income/VAT/percentage/withholding tax,
which has been protested/agreed upon.
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